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               Soldiers

Josiah Brantley; 20th Inf. [23] {tailor} b. Isle of Wight; enl. Norfolk on 18 May 1814; dis. Norfolk 20 March 1815
Source: Virginia Soldiers in the United States Army 1800-1815
****************************************************************************************************


Brunswick County, Virginia

Deed Book 10

Oct 24 1771 - Wm Lucus of Mecklenburg Co to Thos Dupree of Brunswick Co  250 acres joining the so side of Meherrin River, Edward Brantley, Mirey Meadow, Richard Jackson  Wit: Lewis Dupree, Thos Dupree, Robert Dupree  Proved Nov 1771

******************************************************************************************************







Deeds & Grants 





      
        Isle of Wight County






    
  Virginia

                              


   
  **  GRANT  **

EDWARD BRANTLEY                


OCT 30 1669             

 ISLE OF WIGHT CO

     675 ACRES ADJOINING LAND OF MR ENGLAND & MR TOOKE

******************************************************************************************************.PHILLIP BRANTLEY                   


JUNE 20 1716          
 ISLE of WIGHT COUNTY

             to                                                                                      


     VIRGINIA  

 

   JOHN DAVIS

FOR 4000 POUNDS OF TOBACCO

     "tract of  land  and plantation situated lying and being in Isle of Wight County whereon the said Phillip Brantley dewleth 100 acres being part of a rant of 675 acres dated Oct 20, 1669 to Edward Brantley by the last will & testament and devised to said Phillip.

Witness:  Joseph Chapman, Wm Harrison

******************************************************************************************************.                               




**  GRANT

EDWARD BRANTLEY                    

MAR 18 1717             


ISLE OF WIGHT CO

400 ACRES -NEW SETTLEMENT FOR THE SAPONIE INDIANS- ON THE SOUTH SIDE OF THE MEHERINE RIVER AND BEING PART OF THAT TRACT OF LAND, WHEREON THE SAID INDIANS LATELY DWELT & C Beg.g ON THE SAID RIVERS BANK

Patent 10 Page 372

******************************************************************************************************.EDWARD BRANTLEY                       

OCT 2, 1719        

       ISLE of WIGHT COUNTY

         to











   VIRGINIA

JOSEPH PARKS

EDWARD of Isle of Wight county center? and Joseph Parks of James City County

  for 20 pounds

     "lower most of a certain tract containing 400 acres being in Isle of Wight County and the south side of the Meherine River and by patent bearing date Mar 18, 1717 granted unto said Edward Brantly, beginning at a sycamore tree upon the river bank thence west by south 120 poles to a hickory near Sappony old fort then south 49 degrees, west 72 poles to a pine then south by west ??  Wit:  Edward & Wm Ya--

******************************************************************************************************.

EDWARD BRANTLEY                   

OCT 12 1719     

              ISLE of WIGHT COUNTY

             to   

OWEN MYRICK

Both of Isle of Wight Co  5 shell lawful money of England   - 200 acres

"Land on the South side of the Meherine River part of a patent granted to Edward Brantley, bearing date Mar 18, 1717. Beginning at a simmon tree on the side of a deep gutt, it being a markey tree, of North side of land mentioned in patent, thence a southerly course along a line of marked trees -------------------until it meets a with a southernmost line and westerly along a course of aforesaid patent until it comes above the old Saffony Fort 

******************************************************************************************************.

                                     

         

GRANT

PHLLIP BRANTLEY                   


FEB 22 1724                            ISLE OF WIGHT CO VIRGINIA
80 ACRES ON THE SOUTH SIDE OF THE MAIN BLACKWATER SWAMP- Beg.g &c ON THE EAST SIDE OF THE CEDAR CREEK SWAMP & ON THE NORTH SIDE OD THE POLEY I'LAND POCOSON.

******************************************************************************************************.BENJAMIN BRANTLEY                

APR 20 1733                       ISLE of WIGHT COUNTY VIRGINIA
           to                                                      


         




        

JOHN DAVIS

Both of upper parish    105 pounds current Va money

  "Tract of land lying in the upper parish on Lyons Creek 150 acres beginning at Smallock's Gull and bounded on William Drew line to the River and so along the River to Barlow's line and down the said line to the Crook and so up to 1st station:

Witness:  John Summerall, John Hodges

******************************************************************************************************.BENJAMIN BRANTLEY & WIFE ELIZABETH     MAY 26 1735     
   ISLE of WIGHT CO     VIRGINIA
              to






      

         



 JAMES BRANTLEY

Both of lower parish of Virginia for 10 pounds of Virginia Money, one hundred acres being one half of  200 acres in the lower parish of Isle of  Wight County   Witness: William Harrison, Samuel Jones

******************************************************************************************************.BENJAMIN BRANTLEY & WIFE ELIZABETH   -MAY 26 1735     



 -ISLE of WIGHT CO

      
      to









              VIRGINIA

 EDWARD BRANTLEY

 Both of the lower parish   for 10 pounds of Virginia money  One half of 200 acres 

  " land in the lower parish bounded by Burwells land, Edward Brantley's land, and James Brantley's land

******************************************************************************************************. JOHN BRANTLEY                


JAN 10 1740                             ISLE OF WIGHT COUNTY

    
   to                                                          


   


         VIRGINIA

THOMAS BARROW

Land in Nottoway Parish of Isle of Wight County on South side of the Nottoway River bounded by the Meherine River

    "Hickory on the bank of Meherine River, a corner tree, of James Grishon’s land thence along Grishons line to a white oak thence to an elm thence to 4 trees thence to a Hickory tree on line of William Williams' land thence by Williams' line to live oak thence to 3 trees in a line of John Poythress' land thence by his line to a Hickory thence to lightwood post in a line of John Peterson's land thence by Peterson's line to an elm thence to a gum by the side of the Meherine River and down several meaders of the river to the begining for 350 acres.  Land by pattented was granted the John Brantley by the Honorable Wm Gooch, his majesty Lt. Govenor bearing date Sept 22"

Witness: John Peterson, Benjamin Blunt, Simon Turner

******************************************************************************************************.

Deeds & Grants 

Isle of Wight County

Virginia

                                   



COURT ORDER

                                   


 
JUNE 23 1740

     At court id Isle of Wright Co, James Brantley petitioned court for an acre of land belonging to John Brantley for the building a Water Grist Mill he having land on one side of Harbert's Branch.  

March 28 1743 Pursuant to order 1 acre of John Brantley's granted to James Brantley

Joshua Claud Francis Exum

******************************************************************************************************. JOHN LEWIS                         


DEC 17 1740              

ISLE of WIGHT COUNTY

           to                                                         



 



VIRGINIA

J0HN BRANTLY

Both of upper parrish    7 pounds  for 70 acres

     "Begining at a Great Branch at a pine along Lewis' line to a pine corner tree, then along the line to a white oak long the dividing line to the Mirey? Branch so up the Great Branch to the first station being 70 acres part of a patent of 347 acres.          

Witness:  Solomon Williams, Henry Lightfoot, John Wade

******************************************************************************************************.ARTHUR WILLIAMSON                   

FEB 21 1743             

      ISLE of WIGHT COUNTY

      
        to

ELIZABETH BRANTLEY

Both of Isle of Wight County

120 acre tract of land lying on the Southside of Blackwater Swamp

     "Begining at a white oak on the northwest side of  B___hue?Swamp - a corner tree of Francis Williamson and down his line north 50 degrees east, 30 pole to a red oak, north 19 degrees east sixty pole to a pine North eight degrees west 36 poles to Hickory 65 degrees west 108 poles to a pine, then south 15 degrees west one 168 poles, to red oak, then south 65 degrees east 26 poles to a red oak, and east 29 poles being part of a patent granted to John Fervor?  and transferred to Edward Boykin bearing date Mar 24, 1725 the transferred to Williamson on Feb 16, 1743"

Witness:  James Simmons, Thomas Williams

******************************************************************************************************.JOHN BRANTLEY                      


FEB 17 1745            
  
    ISLE OF WIGHT COUNTY

      TO 

JOHN CALTHORP     

     JOHN BRANTLEY (His wife Hannah released her dower rights) FOR 50 POUNDS,  25O ACRES ON WEST SIDE OF FLAT SWAMP WITNESS:   JOHN CLIFTON, JOHN MACKLEMORE, CHARLES CALTHROP

************************************************************************************************






Deeds & Grants 

Isle of Wight County

Virginia

EDWARD BRANTLEY               


FEB 27 1745                  

 ISLE of WIGHT COUNTY

            to                                                           






VIRGINIA

 SIMON  VICK

Edward Brantley to Simon Vick both of Isle of Wight 100 Acres for 10      pounds

Tract on the Northside of Meherine River on the eastside of the Stoney Branch  part of a patent granted to Samual Davis by his Honorable Wm Gooch bering date of March 1 1743

Beginning at a pine by the Stoney Branch and along a of line marked trees to a red oak and thence along marked trees to a white oak thence to the Stoney Branch and up the course of the run of the Branch to the beginning."

Witness: Issac Vick, Phillip Brantley, William Vick

******************************************************************************************************.JOHN BRANTLEY                   


APRIL 9, 1747                               
ISLE OF WIGHT COUNTY              

    
  to                                                           



   


    VIRGINIA

JOSEPH ATKINSON

John Brantley & Joseph Atkinson - both of Isle of Wight 

Track of land lying and being on the East Side of the first Swamp of the Black Water containing by examination 100 acres of land which was by the last and will and testament of Edward Brantley deceased devised to his grandson Edward deceased, father of the said John Brantley

     "Beginning at "James Tooke Scott's line thence along that line to John Miller's line thence along the said Miller's line to John Wrenn's line and along his line to the line of land purchased by James Ingles of John Davis along the said Ingles's line to the beginning"

Witness:  John Person, John Dunkley, John Eley, James Holt

******************************************************************************************************.JOHN & HANNAH BRANTLEY             

APR 20 1748             


ISLE OF WIGHT CO

           TO








 

  VIRGINIA

JOHN PERSON

     JOHN & HANNAH OF GRANVILLE CO NC - FOR SUM OF 0NE HUNDRED POUNDS OF CURRENT VA MONEY THE TRACT OF LAND GRANTED TO HIM BY A DEED FROM MARY  KENNY DATED APR 23 & 24 1740, CONTAINING 400 ACRES ON THE EAST SIDE OF THE FLAT SWAMP. 

Begining at a Gum by the said swamp a corner of Alexander Walkers line and sixty six poles to 2 Pines,

Witness:     --- Thomas Clarke & Henry Person                                                   Page 261

******************************************************************************************************.RICHARD REYNOLDS                 


JAN 1 1750                         ISLE of WIGHT COUNTY

    
  to                                                       

                       



  VIRGINIA

JOHN BRANTLEY

Both parties of Isle of Wight Co    Lease to Brantley for 20 years

Lease unto the John Brantley, the plantation whereon Mary Goodman lived last in aforesaid County, 2 pounds and 10 schillings annually: said Brantley to build a dwelling house 20 feet by 16 feet fit for a dwelling.   Acknowledge Aug 3 1750

Witness: George Been, William Ponsonby Jr

******************************************************************************************************.



  
   
GRANT

VINCENT BRANTLEY                    


SEP 28 1758    

         ISLE OF WIGHT CO

 94 ACRES ON THE SOUTH SIDE OF THE JAMES RIVER, ADJOINING THE LAND OF Wm HARRISON, BRANTLEY'S PATENT LAND, SAMUEL WILSON & THOMAS'S BARLOW'S LAND

******************************************************************************************************.
THOMAS DAY                          


OCT 3 1765             

ISLE of WIGHT COUNTY

    to                                                       







VIRGINIA

BENJAMIN BRANTLEY

Both of Isle of Wight Co  

    Rents all the plantation to Benjamin Brantley whereon he (Ben)now lives; land beginning at a tree between Wm Glover and Thomas Day, thence as the said Day's pasture runs on the North by John Wrenn's line and thence east by James Lupoo's line

******************************************************************************************************.JOHN BARLOW/DORLOW                       

JUN 14 1806                   
ISLE OF WIGHT COUNTY

                 to







   
    VIRGINIA

THOMAS BRANTLEY

                           $15.00 for 3 Acres

Land lying on the Pagan Creek in Isle of Wight Co adjoining Thomas Brantley's own property and Wm Brown

Witness:  James W Ballard,  Jacob Johnson
This original record clearly shows this to be John Dorlow & wife Judith and Catherine Baker of the county of Nansemond
******************************************************************************************************      NANCY WOMBLE                  

OCT 23 1813                    ISLE OF WIGHT CO

  
   to








VIRGINIA

THOMAS BRANTLEY

                       FOR 35 DOLLARS - 50 ACRES

   STATES THAT BRANTLEY'S WIFE IS WIDOW OF Wm Womble?? & THAT NANCY WAS FORMERLY    NANCY OUTLAND; HER BROTHER WAS ELISHA OUTLAND LAND AJOINED MISS NANCY STRINGFIELD, SCOTTS OLD MILL SWAMP, Wm OUTLAND &      Wm BALDY     

                                      NANCY WAS OF CHATHAM CO NC

ANDREW WOODLEY, 

HENRY CROCKER, 

JAMES STALLINGS

***************************************************************************************************

1813 Isle of Wight County - Valentine Brantley estate probated in 1813 by Bartholomew Lightfoot.  Names mentioned (Notes) Joseph Gray, Joseph Jenkins, Robert Simmons, Robert Newman adm'r for Wm Hawkins,   Court Order Book I

Virginia Quit Rent Rolls 1704

List of her Maj Qt Rents in the Isle of Wight County in the year 1704

Philip Brantley   
200

Edward Brantley
175

John Brantley
30_?

John George
200

Peter Deberry      100

This suggest that the only adult Brantleys in Isle of Wight County in 1704 were the sons of Edward Brantley (d1688).  If there were others, they did not own property.

 ******************************************************************************************************

HISTORICAL SOUTHERN FAMILIES

VOLUMES 2, 5, 6

VOLUME 2, Page 244-245

Colonel John George made his will Aug. 2, 1678, probated Jan. 9, 1678-79, as follows: "to son ISAAC GEORGE all the land I hold from Castle Creek to Quarter Spring, to grandchild JOHN GEORGE one negro, after 6 years grandchild to be brought up to reading and writing with wife in charge; to two daus.  REBECCA and SARAH 40 sh.; to grandchildren JOHN and JOYCE LEWIS each a heifer; to children of Phillip Pardoe 1 heifer to be paid 1680; to dau. SARAH PEDDINGSTON'S 2 children had of my son MORGAN LEWIS, a cow and calf to be paid in 1681; to my kinswoman Mary Baugh 20 sh. to buy a ring; to wife ANN GEORGE remainder of estate and property in England and Virginia.  Wits. Robert Parke, Thos. Taberer, Edw. Bechinoe, George Branch. Major James Powell and Thomas Taberer to be overseers:. (W.&D. 2-25) Ann George, widow of Colonel John George, married secondly, Col. John Lear and thirdly appears to have married Robert Randall for on April 9, 1696 Robert Randall and Anne, his wife, assign any claim they have to Colonel's estate to William Smith, Administrator.     Children of first wife, Jane {Cole}:

I.
Isaac George, born Feb. 20, 1635(Bible) (See later)

II.
Sarah George, m. (1) Morgan Lewis, whose will was dated


Jan. 10, 1676-77, and probated June 9, 1677.  He mentions wife, Sarah, and dau. Sarah, if daughter die in her minority then to surviving children, bequests to wife and three daus.  to be equally divided; to John Ingram, a cow.  Wits. George Hardy Sr., Philip 
Pardoe (Bk. 1-148; C.W. I, 21) Mrs. Sarah George Lewis m. (2) ...........Peddington.  Morgan Lewis had two children mentioned in Col. George's will, but not by name.

III.
Rebecca George m. (1) Thomas Lewis, (2) Philip Pardoe. Thomas Lewis died intestate before July 2, 
1670. Children of 1st marriage to Thomas Lewis:


1.
John Lewis, unm. made his will Oct. 1 1692, probated Dec. 9, 1692, as follows:  To Phillip

Brantley's five children each a cow; to sister Joyce Brantley and Phillip Pardoe died intestate



in 1678 when inventory was filed by Rebecca.


2.
Joyce Lewis m. Phillip Brantley, son of Edward Brantley, who made his will in 1688.  He had 

5 
children who were mentioned in will of their uncle, John Lewis, but not by name.  One child, 

Edward Brantley, was given 200 acres in the will of his grandfather, Edward Brantley, in 
1688 if he lived        to be 21. Children of 2nd marriage to Phillip Pardoe:

-----------


3.
Phillip Pardoe, in 1703 sold to Robert Kae 20 acres held by his father.  Philip died intestate 


in 1721.  Appraisal of his estate filed by John Brantley (Bk. 2, p. 71)

-----------
page 246

....George died intestate, for his estate was appraised by Thomas Hardy, John Brantley, George Riddick and George Barlow (no date) 1712.  It is probable that he left a son, William George, who married Sara Thorpe, sister of John Thropp (names spelled both ways in records).  John Thropp in his will dated Jan. 20, 1720/2 1721 gave a legacy to his sister, Sara Batts' two sons, "William George and Elias George that she had by William George." (C-11-15) William George and Thomas Thropp witnessed the will of Richard Bennett,...

continued

HISTORICAL SOUTHERN FAMILIES

VOLUMES 2, 5, 6

Page 26

On December 22, 1740, the estate of William Killebrew of Isle of Wight was appraised by Thomas Barrow, John Barrow and Martin Middleton. (Chapman, Vol. 2, p. 101) on Nove. 1, 1742, John Barrow witnessed the will of William Blake (ID-127).  On July 25, 1737, the estate of Edward Brantley was appraised by Thomas Barrow, et. al (ID-87)

Page 27

III.
Bartholomew Barrow, b. October 16, 1766, d. Feb. 15, 1852 in Louisiana; m. (1) Ascension Slatter, the dau. of James Slatter and Charity Cotton of Halifax Co. (Mentioned in will of James Slatter, Halifax W. B.) They had at least one daughter, Elisabeth Ruffin Barrow (1800-1822) who married Wilson Carey Whitaker of Fishing Creek, Halifax Co. They had no living issue.  (Whitaker Bible records) Wilson Whitaker married (2) Agnes Hannon, the daughter of Anne Bennett Smith, and John Hannon and left many descendants.  According to the descendants of Bartholomew Barrow, he also married Elizabeth Slatter and Bethea Brantley (1777-1843).

VOLUME 5, Page 37

1.
Abraham Joyner III, m. Temperance Hart, daughter of Fanny (Brantly) and William Hart, d. 1800.  
William Henry Hart was the son of Arthur Hart and his wife Martha Warren, daughter of Thomas 
Warren of Southampton, Va., who made his will in Northampton
Oct. 22, 1788.  Arthur Hart was the son of Ann and Thomas Hart who made his will in Northampton in 1761.  Fanny Brantley was the daughter of Martha and Thomas Brantley of Northampton who made his will in 1776.  He was the son of Clay Brantley whose will was probated in Southampton in 1755. (Disagree with this; not son of Clay) 

Page 66

William Clay, son of John the elder, mentioned in his will probated in Isle of Wight, 1675, the following legatees:  Thomas, the son of my brother Thomas; Mary, youngest daughter of Henry Reynolds; brother John Clay's daughter Elizabeth; wife Judith Clay's lands to his daughter Elizabeth Clay after wife's decease.  Wife and GEORGE HARDY, Sr., Exrs., and account current of "what estate William Clay in Lawnes Creek died possessed" was made Feb. 1683/4 by MARY ARCHER and John Clay.  Her daughter, Elizabeth, married John Brantley; her daughter Sarah (posthumus) married George Barlow.

-------------------------
(Isle of Wight Co, VA Wills & Deeds Book 2-148) 

On 26 Jan 1676/77 Morgan Lewis made a Will in Isle of Wight Co, VA naming his wife Sarah, and daughter Sarah and "Three daughters" who weren't named. It was recorded 9 Jun 1677. Witnesses were George Hardy Sr, Philip Pardoe (married to Rebecca George). On 7 Jun 1677 George Hardy Sr, Richard Hansford and Phillip Pardoe were named appraisers of  the estate. 

********************************************************************************************

BIRTH RECORDS

VA

MARY COUNSEL ?

John Brantley son of Wm. Brantley and Mary his wife was born the 15th March 1729/30

Wm. Brantley son of Wm. Brantley and Mary his wife was born the 20th day of March 1735/6

Joseph Brantley son of Wm. Brantley and Mary his wife was born the  26th Sep 1737
-----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------​​​​​​​​​​​​​​​​​​------------------------

THE 1787 CENSUS OF VIRGINIA,

Vol. 2. Genealogical Books in Print,Springfield, VA.

An accounting of the name of every white male tithable over 21 years; the number of white males between 16 & 21 years; the number of slaves over 16 & those under 16 years; together with a listing of their horses, cattle & carriages; and also the names of all persona to whom ordinary licenses and physician's licenses were issued. (LPL)

Last/first/chgd w tax/white m. 16-21/blacks 16+/horses, mares, colts,
mules/cattle/notes

Southampton County--Tax List "A"
BRANTLEY Etheldred self 0 2 1 3 16
James self 


0 2 1 1 0

Southampton County--Tas List "B"
BRANTLEY Joshua self 
0 0 0 0 0

Isle of Wight County--List "A"
BRANTLEY Joseph self 
0 2 0 2 8
Thomas self 

0 0 1 0 3
Ann self 


0 1 3 0 2 not tithable
Wilson self 

0 5 4 3 23
Willis Wilson Brantley 
James Wilson Brantley (complete entry)

Virginia - Isle of Wight County -- 1790 Personal Property Tax List  





Page 





    Page

Brantley, Ann 


 03 

Brantley, Carey


 03 

Brantley, James
 

 03 

Brantley, Thomas (son of John)
 02 

Brantley, Thomas, Jr 
02 

Brantley, Thomas, Sr 
01 

Brantley, Willson 
03 

Brantley, Richard 
02

----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

ISLE OF WIGHT MARRIAGES 1628 - 1800 by Blanche Adams Chapman >


  Page 005 BRANTLEY, EDWARD and MARY DAVIS, sister of John Davis. 1750. O. B.    1746-52, p. 229. 
**********************************************************************************

WILLS and ADMINISTRATIONS of 
 ISLE OF WIGHT COUNTY
VIRGINIA
1647 - 1800
BOOK I

    Inventory and appraisal of the estate of Morgan Williams ordered May 3, 1669. Appraisers, - Thomas Barlow, John Brossio, Edward Brantley, Elias Fort.  Presented  by Dorthy Williams.  R. May 10, 1669 

                                 




Page 11/66

    Joseph Poole - May 13 1669  Appraisal of estate ordered 3 May 1669 Appraisers, - Thomas Barlow, Edward Brantley, Charlews Williams, and Elias Fort.  Page 14/66

    Appraisal of estate of Thomas Dixon, taken by Thomas Barlow, Edward Brantley, Robert Roe, Elias Fort. Presented by Henry Martin who married the relict of  Thomas Dixon. R. Oct. 25, 1670.        

 






Page 14/ 91

   Thomas Harris appointed his relict Alice his Extx., June 10, 1672.  John Newman and Edward Brantley were Security. Isle of Wight

 

John George: Leg. - son Isack; grandson John George (under 6 years) ; daughters Rebecca and Sarah; grandchildren John and Joyce Lewis; children of Phillip Pardoe; children of my daughter Sarah Peddington, which she had of my son Morgan Lewis; kinswoman Mary Baugh; wife Ann. Wife Extx. Overseers, Major James Powell and Thomas Taberer.  D. August 2, 1678.  R. January 9, 1678. Wit. Robert Parker, Thomas Taberer, Edward Bochinoe, George Branch.                    

                                        



Page 25/170

William Groves: Appraisal by John Harris, Edward Brantley, Elias Fort, Edward Grantham, Presented by Mrs. Elinor Groves. Ordered 21st of 9 mo. 1677.    R. February 9, 1678.              








Page 25/172

-- Wills and Administrations, Isle of Wight Co. Va 1647-1800, Book 1, p. 176.  William Cockins: Appraisal by Edward Brantley, John Britt, William Baldwin, Edward Champion. Presented by his widow. Ordered recorded 10 March 1678, and recorded 9 April 1679
    
 And this from the same volume, page 45. William Cockins, dying intestate, administration requested by Edward Grantham, in right of his wife, the relict of William Cockins. 10 March 1678, Recorded 9 April 1679. Security George Moore and Mr Thomas Moore.  Submitted by {Bill Grantham}
---
    William Cokins: Appraisal by Edward Brantley, John Britt, William Baldwin, Edward Champion. Presented by the widow. Ordered March 10, l678. R. April 9, 1679.                               Page 26/176
    Elias Fort: Appraisal by Edward Brantley, John Britt, William Baldwin, Edward Champion.

    D. March 10, 1678   R. April 9, 1679.                Page 26/188
    Edward Brantley, Sr.  Leg. - son Edward and his son James 165 A. of land; son Phillip and his son Edward; son John and his son John; daughter Mary; to my sons oldest sons. Daughter Mary Extx.  

D. March 30, 1688.   R. January 9, 1688/9  Wit. John Wetstono, Anne White, Will Evans.     Page 43/289
    John Lewis: Leg. - Phillip Brantley and his five children;  sister Joyce Brantley; Phillip Pardoe; Elizabeth Pardoe; Sarah Dadway; my mother Rebecca Pardoe. Mother, Extx.  D. 1st of Xber 1692.  R. December 9, 1692

Wit:  Tho Rockhorne, Richard Piland, John Shelton

Page 48/320

    John Wilson: Appraisal by Robert Kae, John Brantley, Will Thomas. Presented by Katherine Wilson, the relict.   D. July 27, 1694   R. August 9, 1694 

Page 51/348

Margaret Wilson: Appraisal by Thomas Woodley and John Brantley.  R. November 29, 1697.             








Page 56/401

Capt. Robert Kae. Appraisal by John Brantley, George Barloe, William Thomas, Richard Hardy. April 10, 1704      

(Barlow)



 
Page 62/464

Nathaniel Whitley and Thomas Wren indebted to Col Sam Bridger 28 Nov 1704; signed Thomas Wren and Nath Whitley; witness Will Bridger and Phillip Brantley.  Same indebtedness for Benjamin Champion and George White.  Same for Nanthaniel Whitley and Thomas Wren   Page 62/508

John George. Appraisal by John Brantley, Thomas Hardy, George Kiddick and George Barlow.    abt  1711                






Page 72/527

Peter Deberry: Leg. - daughter Priscilla, wife of Zacharias Maddera; son John land adjoining William Thomas; daughter Sarah the wife of John Warren, part of Piland's patent; son John the bed on which I now lie at the house of James Sampson; wife Elizabeth. Exs., wife and brother John Brantley. D. December 30, 1712.    R. March 28, 1712  Wit.  Nathaniel Ridley, James Sampson, James Maddera, Mary Sampson.

                                    




Page 76/554

Thomas Carrell: Leg. - son James; son Thomas; son John; son Robert; son  William; wife Mary.  Wife Extx.

 D. October 1, 1716    R.  Wit. John Brantley, Clay Brantley, Thomas Holleman.

                                    




Page 83/616

Thomas Hardy. Appraisal by Will Drew, John Brantley, and Will Ruffin. Signed by Charles Jarrett and Mary his wife, Extx. of Thomas Hardy.  September 13, 1717.

                                    




Page 84/625

George Barlow: Leg. - son John; daughter Elizabeth; son George; daughter Sarah; daughter Mary; son Thomas Wife Extx. with the assistance of John Brantley D. December 10, 1718   R. Wit. John Brantley, Hester Brantley.

                                   




 Page 88/661

Samuel Eldridge. Dying intestate, administration requested by Thomas Moore, who married his relict. April 10, 1665.  R. June 21, 1665   Security, George Moore, ----- Brantlie.             Page 92/10

Thomas Harris. By will appointed to his relict, Alice his Etx. June 10, 1672    R. Nov. 13, 1672. Security, John Newman, Edward Brantley.



Page 99/29

John Clay. Dying intestate, administration requested by John Brantley in behalf of his wife and her sister Sarah Clay. May 1, 1685 R. Dec. 9, 1685 
Sec Wm Evans & Wm Baldwin


 Page 108/57

    Edward Brantley. By will appointed Mary Brantley, his daughter Extx. Jan. 9, 1688 R. April 20, 1689      







 Page 112/71

WILLS AND ADMINISTRATIONS OF

ISLE OF WIGHT COUNTY

VIRGINIA 1647-1800 BOOK II

Hunt, Lawrence.  Appraised by Edward Simmons, Edward Brantley, Richard Smith, John Person, Jr.

D.  November 7, 1719.       R. April 20, 1720                  Page 4/25.
Tiller, John.  Appraised by Edward Symonds, Edward Brantley, Richard Smith.      R. May 23, 1720.








Page 5/29.

Lancaster, Robert.  Appraised by John Brantley, Richard Cray, Benjamin Hodges.  Ordered May 23, 1719.  

R. June 27, 1720.  Signed Robert Lancaster.                 Page 5/30.
Shelley, John:  Of the Upper Parish.  Leg.=to brother Thomas Shelly; to Elizabeth Ogburne, the dishes at John Harris'; to my son John Phillips Shelly.  Ex., brother Thomas Shelly.

D. June 23, 1718     R. June 27, 1720.
Wit.  George Riddick, John Brantley








Page 5/35.

Meecum, John.  Appraised by John Crews, John Brantley, Richard Gray.  Signed by Susanna Meecum.

February 6, 1720/1
(Meacom)



Page 10/67

Pardue, Phillip.  Appraised by John Brantley, John Fiveash, Richard Gray.  Ordered March 11, 1720/21.

R.  March 27, 1721.




Page 11/71

Edward  Brantley,  Ages 72 years.  Leg.-son Edward; grandson John Balmer.  Exs., wife & Dave Evans.

D.  1720  R.  July 24, 1721Wit.  John Brantley,  James Madree (?). {actual will says wife and Dave Evans}








Page 13/90

Amos, William.  Appraised by James Wilson, George Riddick, John Brantley, Richard Gray.  Signed Elizabeth Whitaker. R.   August 26, 1721.









Page 14/96

John.  Brantley, Appraised by James Pyland.  Arthur Wills (?), James Wilson        April 26, 1725.








Page 24/180

 
Unknown author: James Pyland, Arthur Wills, and James Wilson appraised the estate of John Brantley on 26 April 1725.  James Pyland and Elizabeth Sparkman were witnesses to the will of Thomas Fiveash, dated 4 January 1725/6. Stephen Kea's estate was appraised by James Pyland, John Brantley, and Peter Fiveash. The appraisal was recorded 26 June 1727. On 19 April 1727 James Pyland and John Welch witnessed the will of Henry Kea. A few days later, on 28 April, James Pyland and James Wilson were appointed executors of the will of Hester Brantley, who was their second cousin once removed.

Virginia Land Patent Book No. 12, p. 440, dated 24 March 1725, Thomas Harris. 290 acres of new land, Is. of Wight Co., n. s. of Maherin Riv., & on b. s. of Herbert's Br.; adj. Edward Brantley and William Simmons' line.

 

Kea, Stephen.  Appraised by James Pyland, John Brantley, Peter Fiveash.     R. June 26, 1727








Page 30/32

Thomas Crafts - of the upper Parish  Will dated 29 Oct 1722  recorded 24 Jul 1727.  Legatee wife Mary; children Thomas, John, Samuel, Mary, Martha Brantley and Elizabeth Tewell.  Witness Thomas Hylliard, Michael Harris, anf Hugh Edwards







Page 30/34

Joseph John Bridger - will dated Nov 30 1727 rec 25 Mar 1728.  Legatee brother James; uncle Joseph Allen, loving father 350 acres at Round Hill  Exc'r father and uncle Joseph Allen; witness Reubin Proctor, Elizabeth Brantley and Ann Burnett.  Will presented by Wm Bridger and Joseph Allen.








Page 30/68

continued
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Sampson, James:  Leg.-son Barcroft; daughter Margaret 100 acres adjoining Isaac Jarrett and Nicholas Derring; daughter Elizabeth 100 acres on which the widow Madera now lives, adjoining the land of Edward Brantley and Burwell's line; daughter Ann Derring, the plantation on which her husband Nicholas Derring now lives.  Trustees, Samuel Croft and John Floyd.
D.  November 30, 1727    R. March 25, 1728.   Wit.  James Ingles, Charles Goodrich, Thomas Jones.








Page 36/71

BOOK II

Ann Burnett - of upper Parish  Will dated 8 Apr 1729 Rec 28 Apr 1729   Legatee cousin Joseph Willismson; exc'r brother Francis Williamson  Wit  Wm Dixon and Elizabeth Brantley   Page 48/154

Barlow, Sara:  Leg.-daughter Mary; son Thomas; granddaughter Sara Carrell.  Ex., son Thomas Barlow. 

D.  March 19, 1728/29    R.  August 25, 1729        Wit.  William Dixon, John Brantley, Clay Brantley.








Page 48/175

Thomas Harris - appraisal by Edward Brantley, John Tharp, and Thomas Purcell  22 Feb 1730/31   Page 48/245

Brantley, John:  Leg.-to grandaughters, Elizabeth Martha and Mary Loopers (Lupo); to grandson John, the son of my son Clay Brantley; to grandson Thomas Brantley, the son of my son Clay; to friend Thomas Walton.
Ex.  son Clay Brantley      D.  February 1, 1730/31      R.  March 22, 1730/31    Wit.  Thomas Walton, Elizabeth Walton. 



 Page 56/248

Norwood, Richard.  Appraised by Thomas Cook, Joseph Parks, Edward Brantley.    R.   October 25, 1731








Page 59/285

Westbrook, John.  Appraised by Nathaniel Ridley, Edward Brantley, Thomas Cook.   Signed by John Person.

R.  October 28, 1734.




Page 70/25

Cook, Thomas, Sr.:  Leg.-son Thomas; son Jones; daughter Sarah; daughter Susannah; son Benjamin; son John; daughter Rebecca; son Arthur.
Exs., sons Thomas and Jones Cook.

D.  January 21, 1735/36        R.  November 22, 1736
Wit.  John Brantley, Valentine White.








Page 83/149

Edward Brantley, Of Nottoway Parish.  Leg.-wife Elizabeth; son James; son Lewis; son Joseph; son John.

Exs., sons Lewis and James Brantley
D.  January 26, 1736          R. April 25, 1737

Wit.  Joseph Claud, James Bass, William Spence,  Charles  Bass.













Page 84/157

Edward Brantley,.  Appraised by Simon Turner, Henry Harris, Thomas Barrow.  Signed, Lewis and James Brantley.    R.  July 25, 1737.


Page 87/176

September 26, 1737      Mangum,  John.  Appraised by John Davis,  Edward Brantley, Joseph Ward.   Signed Frances Mangum   Ordered R.  November 28, 1737








Page 88/189

Edward Brantley,  Account estate, examined by James Ridley and Nathaniel Ridley.  Signed James and Lewis Brantley.  R. May 28, 1739


Page 93/230

Robert Fenn Kae - will dated Feb 10 1739/40  Rec Feb 23 1740  Legatee brother Thomas; brother  William Kae; to Thomas Casse; rest of estate to be divided between William Brantley, Thomas Rosser, and Joseph Floyd.  Exc Thomas Casse; wit:  Nicholas Casey, and Wm Richards







Page  102/285

Thomas Murry - will dated Aug 27 1740  Rec Feb 23 1740.    Legatee dg Mary, wife of Benjamin Davis, wife Sarah; dgs Sarah, Eater and Elizabeth wife of John Lee.  Exc'r wife: Wits:  Thomas Stevens, Benjamin Brantley and Charles Fulgham







Page 99/315

James Piland.  Account estate; among items, paid to James Wilson, for Esther Brantley; to funeral charges for his son.  Signed, Elizabeth Briggs.  Examined by James Baker, Lawrence Baker, N. Bourden.

R.  July 28, 1740




Page 99/284

Benjamin Davis; wife Sarah; daughter Sarah; daughter Easter; daughter Elizabeth, the wife of John Lee

Wife Extx  D. August 27, 1740  R. February 23, 1740  Wit. Thomas Stevens, Benjamin Brantley, Charles Fulgram





Page 102/315

*****************************************************************************************************

Land Patent Book

1741 - Capt John RuffinGent 430 acres Isle of Wight N side of Meherrin River bounded by the flat swamp, John Scott, Amos Garrass, Henry Harrison, (pg 208) Thomas Smith, Harry Floyd and John Brantley Mar  15, 1741
------

William Spence 335 scres Isle of Wight N side of Meherrin River bounded by a c bet John Brantley and Hugh Norvell, John Ward's line and Harry Floyd's line Sep 5 1749
*****************************************************************************************************
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Brantley, James's estate appraised by Thomas Harris, John Miller, Edward Miller, Richard Jordan, signed Martha  Brantley:  Ordered Feb 23 1740/41   Rec May 25 1741








Page 104

William Thomas;  Leg.-wife Mary; son Richard, land on the Meherrin River, adjoining Samuel Smith; son Samuel, the plantation on which I live.  Wife, Extx.      D.  May 18, 1741       R.  July 27, 1741 

Wit.  Lewis Brantley, Nathaniel Morrell, Ann Gray.
Page 105/ 356

Brantley James, estate returned by Martha Brantley Nov 23 1741  {Exam'ed by Charles Travis and William Washington Will Book 4 pg 378  IWC VA - Chapman v2 pg 106}








Page 106

Nicholas Derring,.  Estate appraised by Thomas Day, John Goodrich, Edward Brantley.  Signed, James Derring. 

R.  February 22, 1741.




Page 108/394

Ann White,:  Leg.-son John; grandson Thomas White; granddaughter Mary Whit, with the reversion of the bequest to William and Thomas White, the sons of John and Thomas White.  Ex., son George Thomas White.

D.  September 18, 1739     R.  May 24, 1742    Wit.  John Goodrich, Edward Brantley










Page 109/401

Ann White,.  Thomas White.  Estates appraised by Edward Goodrich, N. Bourden, Thomas Day, Edward Brantley.  Ordered March 22, 1741.      R. July 26, 1742.








Page 109/409

Henry Applewhite Jr.,   Account estate returned by Philip and Mary Brantley.  Examined by Thomas Gray and Peter Butts.   R.  September 23, 1745.  


Page 122/547

Will Book Five

John Deshey -  Will dated Oct 24 1747  Rec Jun 9 1748 - Legatees: Mother Mary, cousins; John Wrenn, Mary Brantley James Wrenn, Joseph Wrenn, William Wrenn, Elizabeth Brantley, and Joseph Webb; cousin Martha Bedgood's children cousin Francis Wrenn, in case he should not return legacy to be give to John Wrenn.  Exc'r Mother Mary Deshey; Wits: Thomas Smith, William Glover and Elizabeth Smith 


Book 5/114

Mary Deshey - will dated Oct 20 1748 Rec Mar 9 1748.  Legatee cousin James Wrenn who is pay a bequest to two daughters of Ann Bracy wife of Francy Bracy and to pay John , Joseph, and Wiliam Wrenn, Mary and Elizabeth Brantley, and Martha Bidgood's children; cousins James and Joseph Jordan.  exc'r cousins James and Joseph Jordan;  Wits: Thomas Smith, Wm Glover, and John Chestnut


Book 5 Pg 162

Henry Applewhite Jr.  Account estate, returned by Philip and Mary Brantley.  R. July 5, 1750.








Page 146/255

Edward Brantley,.  Inventory presented by William Harrison.  R.  May 2,  1754









Page 169/95

Clay Brantley,:  Leg.-son John; granddaughter Elizabeth daughter of Thomas Brantley; grandsons, James and Thomas, the sons of my son Thomas Brantley; daughter-in-law Lucy Brantley; to John, Benjamin and Thomas, the sons of Benjamin Brantley.  Ex., son Thomas Brantley. 

D.  March 25, 1753
R.  June 5, 1755  Wit.  Roger Delk, Jacob Bruce.








Page 175/178

James Brantley - Est appraised by Francis Exum, Simon Turner, Thomas Clark.  Signed by Ruth Brantley.  Ordered Apr 1 1742, rec Jul 1 1756. 


Page 178

-----------------------------------

Almond and its Variants by Timothy Ray Almond

Almond, Edward: Appraised by Joseph Chapman, Joseph Brantley, Samuel Godrey. Ordered, November 1776.
R. October 2, 1777
Page 474
Other Entries
From: Elgivia Lisle [mailto:lecl32@cox.net] 
Sent: Saturday, June 16, 2012 10:46 AM
To: Beverly Peoples; John C. Blythe, JR; brantleyassoc@bellsouth.net
Subject: Thomas Harris 1729 Land & Jesse Harris Land

Thomas Harris Will 1729 listed Henry Harris Brother as Executor.

His estate was appraised by Edward Brantley, John Tharp and Thos Purcell.  It was returned by Edward Brantley.

 

The 290 acre tract he patented lying and being n/s Meherin River and both sides Herbert Branch bordered Edward Brantley and William Simmons.

*******************************************************************
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James Brantley,.  Account estate, examined by H. Edmonds, John Person and David Edmonds.  Among items, to Lewis Brantley, judgement recovered by Francis Myrick against them as surviving executors of Edward Brantley, decd..   R.  December 2, 1756




Page 180/244

Council, Susannah:  Legatees........dau Mary Brantley Halifax Co NC.  Apr 9 1756/Oct 6 1757,   {I did say wdo of Henry Applewhite & wife of Philip Brantly. Book History of Sumter Co VA I see the claim is dg of Hardy. Md Wm Brantley.  Based on Court records Mary married Phillip Brantley} 





Page 183

Wright, John:  Leg.-son John; daughter Ann Green; daughter Sarah Butler; daughter Elizabeth West; daughter Juliana Driver; granddaughter Juliana Green; to Sarah Alderson.  Ex., son John Wright.  D.  September 1, 1753
R.  November 3, 1757   Wit.  Richard Reynolds, Martha Wright, William Brantley. 









Page 184/297

Benjamin Brantley,.  Estate appraised by Benjamin Harrison, William Harrison, William Wrenn.  Ordered, January 5, 1759  R.  February 1, 1759
Page 192/465

----------

Hardy Council (1638-1750) Wife: Susannah  Other heirs include Mary who m Wm Brantley, says Susannah lived in NoHampton NC after 1757. (No; died in IoW Co. 1756) Confliction:  Phillp Brantley was made guardian to Mary & Henry’s children.
-----------------------------------------------                                                   ----------------------------------------

WILLS AND ADMINISTRATIONS

OF 
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BOOK III

Feb 22 1759 - Sylvia Brantley petition Court for estate of John Brantley.   Bartholemew Lightfoot, Christopher Reynolds, Wm Richards & Jesse Atkinson- appraisers. Doc on file

John Brantley,.  Appraised.  Signed, Silvia Brantley.   Ordered, January 1, 1761      R. June 4, 1761 Page 71/84

Murry, William.  Appraised by John Seammell, Wilson Brantley, Benjamin Harrison.   Ordered, June 3, 1762   R.  July 1, 1762
Page 19/215






Thomas Joyce Appr by Pitt Reynolds, Jonathan Godwin, Joseph Brantley  Ordered Apr 1 1762  Rec Aug 5 1762








Page 17/190

Murry, John.  Appraised by James Derring, John Barlow, Wilson Brantley.  R. October 6, 1763









Page 251/311

Elizabeth Cutchins estate divided between brothers and sisters  Ex., brother Joseph Cutchins.   D.  January 18, 1764  R.  April 6, 1764 Wit.  Wilson Brantley, Lucy Miller, John Mallery
Page 327

Day, Thomas:   Leg.-wife Elizabeth; son James Bennett Day; daughter Mary daughter Juliana.

Exs., brother John Day and friend Richard Hardy.  D.  October 21, 1769        R. October 1, 1772

Wit.  Henry Harrison, George Thomas White, Thomas Brantley  Page 170

Patterson, Sanford.  Appraised by Francis Young;  Jesse Barlow, Francis Brantley.   Ordered; March 7, 1776

R.  April 4, 1777




Page 78/464

Gray, Mathew
Appraised by Wilson Brantley; Gabriel Gibbs; Thomas Whitfield R. May 1, 1777








Page 465

Lightfoot, Bartholomew:  Leg.-son Bartholomew; son Lemuel; daughter Ann; daughter Mary; to Frances Willet, other wise Lightfoot, daughter of Mary Willet; to Patience  Ex., son Bartholomew Lightfoot.   D.  February 26, 1775        R.  October 5, 1775.   Wit.  Jesse Atkins, Joseph Brantley.      Security,  Jethro Gale, Willis Wills. 






Page 80/476

Lupo, Philip:  Leg.-daughter Mildred; daughter Sally with reversion of bequest between the children of James Lupo and Mary Brantley; after paying a sum of money to the children of John Hodges, which he had by Comfort, his wife, daughter of John Cary.  Brother James Lupo, the guardian of my children and he is to see that my mother is provided for.  Ex., William Carrell.
D.  November 14, 1778    R.  December 3, 1778

Wit.  Mary Carrell, Comfort Carrell,  John Wrenn. Security, John Wrenn.
Page 85/507

Benjamin Brantley,.  appraised by John Mallory, James Lupo, Willis Wilson.  Ordered, October 1778

R.  December 3, 1778




Page 85/ 508
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Frances Brantley,:  Leg.-wife Naney; daughter Sally; daughter Nancy Harrison.  Ex., Benjamin Glover.

D.  May 24, 1779         R.  July 1, 1779.   Wit. John Hodges, Edward Dews, Patience Hodges








Page 88/10

Francis Brantley,.  Appraised by Francis Young, Samuel Wilson, John Fones.   R.  August 15, 1779








Page 88/14

Patience Cary,:  Leg.-five grandaughters, May, Patience, Ann, Rebecca and Comfort Hodges; my three children James Lupo, Philip Lupo and Mary Brantley.
Ex., son James Lupo.

D.  December 7, 1772
 R.  December 2, 1779 Wit. William Carrell, Jeremiah Proctor   Page 30

Benjamin Brantley,.  Account estate, examined by John Mallory and John Wrenn.  R.  July 6, 1780 Page 92/49

Valentine Jenkins of Newport Parish.  Leg Wife:  Mary; son William; brother Edward Jenkins.  

Ex., William Davis.   D.  December 6, 1781    R.  January 3, 1782  Wit.  William Casey, John Hodges,  Thomas Brantley,  Elizabeth Brantley.   Security;   John Lawrence, John Mallory, Howell Edmunds, Francis Young   Page 97/84

Howell, William.   Appraised by Edward Dows,  Wilson Brantley, John Pitman. R.  March 7, 1782 Page 99/112

Lupo, Philip.   Account estate, to balance due the estate of Benjamin Brantley.  Examined by John Mallory and William Hodsden.      R.  August 1, 1782

Page 102/127

On which John Garner lives; son Henry; daughter Betsey; daughter Patsey.  Exs., wife and friend Millis Wills.

D.  February 13, 1784      R.  May 6, 1784  Wit.  John S. Wills, Joseph Brantley, Samuel Atkins.   

Security, John S. Wills, James Wills.


Page 111/230

Butler, John:  Leg.-son Charles; son John; call my children; daughter Ann; daughter Sarah Butler.

Ex., friends Jacob Dickinson and Josiah Wills.  D.  January 17, 1785       R.  March 3, 1785    

Wit.  Joseph Brantley,  George Dickson   Security;  Jesse Atlkinson, Emanuel Wills.








Page 119/308

Jesse Mcoy,.  Appraised by John Butler, Lemuel Lightfoot, Joseph Brantley, James Wills.

R.  July 7, 1785





Page 121/332

Lupo, James:  Leg.-daughter Elizabeth Gray Lupo; daughter Mary; son William; son James; son Laban Lupo.

Exs., sons James and Laban Lupo, Samuel Bidgood. D.  January 15, 1789     R.  September 6, 1790

Wit.   John Woodley, Jr., Charity Brantley, Milly Lupo, John Hodges.   Security, Benjamin Atkinson








Page 145/185

Valentine Jenkins,.  Account estate, examined by------ Young, John Goodrich, William Casey.  Signed, Capt. William Davis.  Among items, paid Willis Brantley, his part of estate; paid Benjamin Barlow for keeping the orphan.  R.  October 4, 1790



Page 146/189
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Anne Bridger,:  of Smithfield.  Leg. - nephew William Chapman.  Ex., William Chapman  D.  October 13, 1793  R.  April 7, 1800  Wit.  Samuel Skinner, Nancy Harner, J. Young, Richard Brantley  Security, John Murray






Page 238

James Brown,.  Appraised by Sampson Wilson, Wilson Brantley, Harwood Calcote, James Pyland

R.  February 4, 1793




Page 155/248

Cutchin, Mary:  Leg.-brother Mathew Cutchin decd.., mentioned; to the children of my four sisters, viz: to Charles, Solomon Wilson, Mary and Elizabeth Pastour, the children of Honour Pasteur; to Margaret and Mary Sinclair, children of Ann Sinclair; to Ridley Honour Applewhaite, daughter of Ridley Applewhaite; to Mary Derring, daughter of Elizabeth Derring decd., my father Joseph Cutchins.  State that Margaret Sinclair is now dead.     Exs., brother Solomon Wilson and Capt. John Pasteur  D.  March 27, 1793     R.  June 3, 1793     Wit.  John Goodrich, Thomas Brantley, William Hardy








Page 260

William Hollowell,:  Account estate, examined by Jesse Atkins, William Hardy, James Brantley.  Ex., Scott and William Hollowell   R.  December 7, 1795

Page 175/380

*******************************************************************************************************

Adventures of Purse and Person

... James Lupo son of Phillip, was called youngest son in his father's will, married, bef APR 18 1679 Sarah Branch dg of  Geore Branch (d 1688) of Surry County.  They settled on part  of her fathers land. On Aug 4 1688, George Branch Jr   sold James Lupo of the Upper Parish of Isle of Wight County, the plantation of 45 acres on which he was then living. He was charged with this land, 1704.  James Lupo left a will 26 Apr 1712  pro 27 Oct 1713  Issue:

Phillip married _Mary?_ Brantley  , dg of  John Brantley & Elizabeth Clay, Sarah died bef Apr 8 1728 when her estate was ordered appraised, married ____ Lilborne, 14 Ann, married John Bedgood Jr who left will 18 Mar 1715 Pro Aug 22 1726, 15 Mary, 16 John married Patience (Perhaps Milner) who married (2) John Cary and left will 7 Dec 1772

*******************************************************************************************************

Colonial Williamsburg Library - Blanche Adams

Married - Mrs Silvia Brantley (relict of John Brantley) & Jacoby West  1762  O.B. 1759-63  p. 354
*******************************************************************************************************

Isle of Wight County Abstractions

1805 - Wilson Brantley left plantation to Robert Glover.  Robert left is to Samuel Glover Nov 9, 1818.
1814 - Robert Glover sold land to Fany Gaulty   (14 acres not specified) adjoing Ellis & Ward.

Nov 26 1805 – Estate of Ann Brantley dec’d Robert Glover administrator Wit Thomas Wrenn, Robert Fullgham.
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BRANTLEY

 Isle of Wight


Edwd.  1721 i.


Edwd.  1737 w.


Jno.   1725 i.


James  1741 i.


Jas.   1756 i.


Benj.  1759 i


Benj.  1778 i.


Francis 1779 w.

 Surry


Hester 1727 w.

BRANTLY

 Isle of Wight


Edwd.  1688-9 w.


Edwd.  1721 w.


Jno.   1730-31 w.


Edwd.  1737 w.


Edwd.  1754 i.


Clay   1755 w.


Jno.
  1761 i.

 Southhampton


Jas.   1794 i

     Etheldred  1798 i.

ISLE of WIGHT COUNTY VIRGINIA

Court Order Books

Jan 9 1693/4 - Order granted Phillip Brantly agst the sheriff for 2000 lbs of tobacco for nonappearance of  Wm Lux after arrest to answer Brantly's suit.  {Extracted form Vol 12 of the Va Genealogist}

-----

Feb 9 1693/4 - Phillip Brantly in his suit agst Wm Lux states that he bought of the defendant a yoke of steers which the defendant delivered to him but doth since detain the steers form the plaintiff's use.  Plaintiff asks damages of 2000 lbs of tobacco.  Defendant pleads not guilty and the cause is referred to a jury.  Verdict We find no damaged agst the defendant.  Suit is dismissed.  {Extracted form Vol 12 of the Va Genealogist}

-----

Abt Feb 1694 - Phillip Brantly vs Jno Davis referred at defendant's request to next court. {Extracted form Vol 12 of the Va Genealogist}

-----

Jun 9 1694 - Judgement on nihil dicit granted Phillip Brantley agst Jno Davis for  3000 lbs of tobacco, conditional to the next court. {Extracted form Vol 12 of the Va Genealogist}

----- 

Jun 9 1694 - Order for commission of adm is granted Katherine Wilson on the estate of her late husband Jno Wilson.  Jno Brantley & Richard Stone, Secs.  ------ Cpt Robt Kae, Jno Brantley & Wm Thomas are assigned to value the estate of Jno Wilson dec'd  Mt Geo Moore to swear them in. {Extracted form Vol 12 of the Va Genealogist}

-----

Jun 9 1694- Katherine Wilson to be Admx of estate of  late husband John Wilson., John Brantley, Richard Stone, Securities.

------

Aug 9 1694 - Phillip Brantley agst. Jno Davis for 3000 lbs of tobacco damage for detainment of a yoke of steers which plaintiff bought of Wm Lucke referred to a jury. Verdict for Phillip. { Extracted form Vol 13 of the Va Genealogist}

-----

Dec 10 1694 - Mr Chapman vs Phillip Brantley referred to next court at request of defendant & with plaintiff's consent, Brantley's child being dead.  {Extracted form Vol 13 of the Va Genealogist}

-----

Dec 11 1694 - Petition of Geo Barlow & Sarah his wife for a writ of partition for division of certain lands lying on Lyon's creek  in this county which descended from Elizabeth Clay dec'd  (dg & legatee of Wm Clay dec'd)  to said Sarah, & Eliza (late wife of John Brantley sisters & coheiresses to said land.  Ordered that the sheriff do summons an able jury of freeholders of the vicinage to meet on said land the last day of Jan next & (accompanied by said shefiff & Mr Geo Williamson, surveyor of this country) are to make a fair & equal division of said land & appurtenances between said Barlow & Sarah his wife & said John Brantly who married the other coheiress. {Extracted form Vol 13 of the Va Genealogist}

-----

Dec 12 1694 - Mr Henry f & Capt Henry Tooker, executors in trust of the last will & test. of Ralph Sherley dec'd having brought their action agst Jno Brantly & not appearing to prosecute, a nonsuit is granted defendant. {Va Genea.}

-----

Feb 9 1694/5 - Pursuant to order of the last court the jury make report of a division of land lying on Lyon's Creek in this county between Geo Barlow & Sarah his wife and John Brantly, and it is the opinion of this court that said Barlow & wife ought to have their choice in this partition, who accordingly choose the 86 acres marked out by Geo Williamson, surveyor, in his plat of said land, containing 284 acres, the 86 acres with the housing & appurtenances thereunto belonging is therefore  allotted to said Barlow and wife, who give their consent that said Jno Brantly shall remain on said 86 acres till xtmas next, provided he commit no waste, and the other part of said land being 198 acres is thereby allotted to said Jno Brantley.   --- The jury men impaneled to make a partition of land between Geo Barlow & his  wife and Jno Brantly have order for two days pay agst said Barlow & Brantly {Extracted form Vol 13 of the Va Genealogist}   

-----

Feb 11 1694/5 - Mr Henry Baker & Capt Henry Tooker, executors of the last will & testament of Ralph Sherley dec'd, bring their action agst Jno Brantly as marrying the admx of Jno Wilson dec'd for 1270 lbs tobacco & six shill: sterl: Defendant comes to the bar to answer & upon strict examination into the matter it appears that two hogheads of tobacco have been marked by said Sherley's receiver, which was taken on this account & the same are by the court adjudged received, & to be deducted from this claim & after the said two hogsheads are weighted, it is ordered that defendant pay plaintiffs the just balance of their said claim.  And whereas the wife of said Jno Brantly alleges that said Sherley's estate is indebted to her for six pounds & a half of tallow, Mr  Geo. Moore is requested to sweat said Brantly's wife to that account. {Extracted from Vol 14 of the VA Genealogist}

Isle of Wight Deeds 1647-1719

Court Orders 1693-1695

Guardian Accounts  1746 - 1767

Oct 30 1669 -  OFFICE OF SECRETATY OF THE COMMONWEALTH, RICHMOND, VIRGINIA           

,

      To all &c.  Whereas &c.  Now know yee that I the sd Wm Berekley  Knt. Governor &c.   Give  &  grant unto Edward Brantly 675 acres of land in the Isle of Wight Coty. beginning at two marked pines neer together in Mr Englands line neer  the Danceing place & running S.E through a pecoson 52 poles to Mr Tooks marked trees, then by Mr Tooks marked trees  N. E. 76 poles to Took's corner tree, then E. by N. to a path 160 poles to a pine by a branch, then E. ny N.E. 180 poles to a poplar on the Eastern side of Ashen Swamp, then N. 80 poles to a red oak by a branch then  up  the  said  branch westerly 120 poles to a pine at the head of a branch neer Hen.   Whites old Cart path  to the mill,  then between the S.W. & S.S.W. along the said Cart path 220 poles to a hite oake  in  the  foresaid line  of  Mr  England & soe along the said England's line to the first station, the said land being due by Trans. of 14 persons into this collonie.  To have and to hold &c To be held &c. yeilding & paying &c. provided &c.  Dated the 30th day of Sep 1669.

Francis Hobbs,  Robert Suite,  Oliver Wms,  Eliz. James his wife   John Bleto, Tho. Sore, Eliz Smith,  Eliz. Wmson, Eliz. Chittin, Austin Battin, Robt. Hall, Richard Lewis, Wm Billey, , Eliz. Fowler

-------

1691 - Arthur Allen of Lawnes Creek Parish in Surry County to Robert Flake of the upper Parish of I/W 170 acres between Thomas Tooke, Capt England, Thomas Blake, and Edward Brantley in the upper parish being land granted him on Oct 20 1691   REC:  Aug 9 1692

------

Jun 1694 - Deposition of Thomas Willison aged 28 mentioned John Brantley and Richard Willison  Pg 114

------

Jun 9 1694 - Katherine Wilson to be Admx of estate of late husband John Wilson.  John Brantley & Wm Thomas to value estate of John Wilson dec.  Mr George Moore to swear them.

------

Aug 7 1694 - Isabell Mayo appoints her brother Mr Hodges Counsel as her attorney to agree with her husband, Wm Mayo to the sale of 170 acres to Thomas Lewis, the son of Richard Lewis, decd.  Wit: Henry Bradly & Hodges Council Jr.

------

Dec 10 1694 - John Brantley, Forman, states that Mr. Skenton informed him that John Williams, Preacher, keeps people from coming to church & Mary Jackson, dg of Robert Jackson has a base born child.  Pg 132

------

Feb 25 1699 - Edward Brantley states that on the last of July last, he heard Hopp, the taylor, say that 2 young boys and Jane Jones lay upon a Bed and had sex.

------

Jan 9 1703 (Rec) Phillip Pardoe of the upper parish to Robert Kae of same 40 acres on Lawnes Creek in the upper parish (Part of land "held by my father in his lifetime) adjoinin efg Maj Burrell & Mr Hardy Wit: Wm Thomas & John Brantley
------

Jan 27 1705 - Thomas Giles, Phillip Brantley, John Brantley and John Davis.  Wit Deed from Edward Chapman Jr to Andrew Wooley

------

Apr 12 1712 - Phillip Brantley wit deed to John Clark to Nicholas Dering 75 acres upper parish.

------

Apr 28 1714 -  Arthur Jones to Samuel Gayner 100 acres upper parish (being an exchange by Francis England and Henry King on Sep 2 1665) and bounded by Phillip Brantley, Richard Jones, Francis England's patent, Maj William Bridger, and Francis Wrenn.  Wit:  Wm Bridger and Henry Lightfoot    REC Jun 28 1714

------

Jun 20 1716 - Phillip Brantley and wife Joyce Brantley to John Davis 100 acres (being part of a patent for 675 acres granted Edward Brantley on Oct 30 1669 who devised it to Phillip Brantley  on 30 1688

Wit:  Joseph Chapman & Wm Harrison           Rec Jun 25 1716

------

May 4, 1716 - John Deberry of Surry County to Thomas Royall of Isle of Wight County 100 acres (being part of a parcel of 675 acres granted to Edward Brantley on Oct 30 1669) bounded by Phillip Brantley and "The Meadow" 

Wit:  Nicholas Dering & John Davis
Rec:  Mar 25 1717

------

Jan 9 1706 - Robert Laurence of I of W county, son and heir of Robert Laurence decd.  Deed to Robert Laurence of Lawns Creek in Surry County 150 acres in upper parish of I  of Wight Co  Land was patent to father.  NOTE: Apr 8 1706 Wm Burnett? gives peaceful possession to Robert Laurence.  Wit Carter Crawford, John Brantley, Wm Bennett & John Berryman REC  Jan 9 1706

-------M







MAR 18 1717  - Edward Brantley  (Grant) Isle of Wight County  - 400 acres of new settlement for the saponie Indians on the south side of the Meherine river and being art of that tract of land, whereon the said Indians lately dwelt & C begin'g on the said river's bank  Patent 10 Page 372 

-------

Mar 26 1717 - Phillip Raeford & wife Sarah of lower parish to Martin Harris of the upper parish  100a Southside of the main Blackwater( being part of 925 acres granted to Radford.   Wit:  John Allen, John Brantley    REC: Mar 27 1717

------- 
Dec 24 1719 - Richard Williams to Benjamin Johnston 200 acres So Side of Nottoway Swamp, part of  400 acres granted said Williams on Nov 13 1713 bounded by James Bryant.  Wit:  Thomas Bryant, Phillip Brantley, Robert Scott

REC:  Dec 28 1719

------

Oct 24 1719 - Richard Drake to Robert Scott 285 acres No side of Nottoway Swamp (patent to Drake 11-13-1713) adjoining John Watts.   Wit:  Edward Brantley, John Person Jr.  Joseph Drake.

------

ISLE OF WIGHT COUNTY, VIRGINIA

DEEDS 1720 - 1736

AND DEEDS 1741 -1749

Grants Added

Jul 27 1719.. Thomas Brasey, Yeoman, and wife, Martha Brasey, of Chowan Precinct in NC to Edward Cobb Sr., Yeoman, of the lower parish of Isle of Wight County,  75 acres at Blackwater adjoining Boons Branch   Wit:  John Gilbert, Edward Cobb , Wm Hall,  and Phillip Brantley.   REC: Mar 28 1720

-----

Oct 12 1719.. Edward Brantley to Owen Myrick...200 acres on the so side of Meherrin River (being part of a patent granted said Brantley on 18 Mar 1717).     Rec. May 23 1720

------

May 21 1720 .... Martin Middleton of Isle of Wight County to Thomas Ellerbee of James City County...90 acres adjoining Edward Brantley and William Smith (being a patent granted said Middleton on 18 Mar 1717.  Wit: Joseph Park, Lewis Dupree, Judith Park, and Lurene Dupre.   REC:  Jun 27 1720

------

Nov 16 1721...Elizabeth Whitaker of Warrick County, Executrix of the last will of Wm Amos, dec’d late of Isle of Wight County to Mathew Wills (Wells) of Warrick County..  12 acres (being land left by Wm Amos) adjoining John Brantly, the son of Philip Brantly, Thomas Wood, decd. and Lawnes Creek.  

Wit:  Nathaniel Jones and Richard Whitaker   REC:  Nov 27 1721

------

Mar 28 1733.. Samuel Gainer and wife, Ann Gainer, of Albemarle County in NC to John Miller of Isle of Wight County... 100 acres in the upper parish adjoining Richard Jones, Phillip Brantley, Francis England, Maj William Bridger and Francis Wrenn.  Wit:  John Hodges, James Everard, Richard Jordan, and Edward Miller, 

NOTE:  Ann Gainer appoints George Bell Sr of the upper parish as her attorney   Wit: John Nairne, Wm Bell and John Bell.   REC:  Aug 27  1733

------

Apr 20 1733... Benjamin Brantley of the upper parish to John Davis of the same.. 150 acres in the upper parish on Lyons Creek adjoining William Dew, the River and Barlow.  Wit:  John Sommerell and John Hodges.    REC: Apr 23 1733

------

September 22, 1739 - John Brantley, grantee  NOTE Location: Isle of Wight County. NOTE Description: 350 acres on the north side of Meherrin River, Beg.g &c. upon the bank of sd. river, a corner of James Grecian's land. NOTE Source: Land Office Patents No. 18, 1738-1739, p. 515 (Reel 16). NOTE Part of the index to the recorded copies of patents for land issued by the Secretary of the Colony serving as the colonial Land Office. The collection is housed in the Archives at the Library of Virginia. OTHER FORMAT Available on microfilm. Virginia State Land Office. Patents 1-42, reels 1-41. 

------

Feb 21 1742... Arthur Williamson to Elizabeth Brantley.. 120 acres on the south side of the main Blackwater Swamp adjoining Barbakue Swamp and Francis Williamson (being a patent granted to John Farrow and transferred to said Edward Boykin and then transferred to Arthur Williamson).  Wit:  James Simmons and Thomas Williams  REC:  Feb 28 1742

------

May 26 1745.. Benjamin Brantley and wife, Elizabeth Brantley, of the lower parish to James Brantley of the same... 100 acres in the lower parish (being 1/2 of 200 acres adjoining James Brantley).

Wit;  William Harrison, Samuel Jones and John Murry.  
REC: Nov 24 1735

------

Feb 26  1742...  William Gurly and wife, Mary Gurley to Thomas Jarrell.. 100 acres adjoining Thomas Jarrell, decd., John Underwood and John Johnson (being part of a patent granted John Howell).

Wit:  James Gray, Richard Holleman and Lewis Brantley.   REC:  Feb 28 1742

------

Feb 21 1744..  Temperance Harrison of Newport Parish to Joseph Jones of the same... 125 acres in Newport Parish (being all of the land that James Wheadon lived on and where Elizabeth Bamer now lives) adjoining Little Creek, Benjamin Brantley and Mrs Sarah Merry.  Wit:  Benjamin Hodges, William Harrison, and John Davis Jr.     REC:  Jun 25 1744.



     


ISLE OF WIGHT COUNTY, VIRGINIA                                 - continued                 

DEEDS 1720 - 1736

AND DEEDS 1741 -1749

Sep 21 1744...  Samuel Davis to Edward Brantley.. 100 acres (being the northern most part of 200 acres granted to said Samuel Davis on Mar 1 1743).  Wit:  Richard Vick Jr., and William Pope.   REC:  Sep 24 1744

------

Aug 17 1749...  Joseph Atkinson and wife Mary Atkinson, to Owen Jones... 100 acres on the east side of the first swamp of Blackwater (being land bought of John Brantley) adjoining James Tooke Scott, John Miller, John Wrenn, James Ingles, and John Davis.    REC:  Sep 7 1749.

-----

Nov 2 1749...  William Harrison and wife, Mary Harrison, to John Meacom...  100 acres )being land willed by Edward Brantley on Mar 30 1688 to his daughter, Mary Brantley, and then it descended to John Deberry as Son and Heir of said Mary Brantley.  He sold the land to Thomas Royall on May 4 1716 and Thomas Royall, son of Heir of the said Thomas Royall, sold the land on Jan 22 1739 to the said William Harrison) on Ashen Swamp and adjoining Phillip Brantley.   REC:  Dec 7 1749.

------

Feb 1 1749...  Owen Jones to John Meacom... 100 acres on the east side of the first swamp on the Blackwater (being land willed by Edward Brantley, dec’d, to his grandson Edward Brantley the Younger, and the land descended from his son, John Brantley, as his Son and Heir, who sold it to Joseph Atkinson on Apr 9 1747, who then sold it to the said Owen Jones) adjoining James Tooke Scott, John Miller, John Wrenn, land formerly James Ingles and John Davis.     REC:  Feb 1 1749.





Isle of Wight County Virginia Deeds  (Several Books) 1750 - 1782

May 6, 1752 - John Wrenn to John Jordan.. 80 acres in Isle of Wight and Surry Counties (being land willed by George Crips on 31 Aug 1687 to his servant man, Henry Suter   Wit:  Richard Jordon, William Jordan, and John Brantley      -John Wrenn     Rec 6 Aug 1752 (IoW Co VA Deeds  1750-1782 pg 507)
Aug 7, 1752 – James Tooke Scott to Arthur Davis land on So side of the prongs of Pagan Creek. 300 acres land given him by the last will and testament of Thomas Scott.
Mar 1 1753 - John Wrenn to Francis Wrenn .. 100 acres adjoining Suters Branch, James Dering, (?) and Squerens Branch   Wit: Richard Jordon, Wilson Brantley, Benjamin Marley, and James Martin
- John Wrenn   Rec 1 Mar 1753  (IoW Co VA Deeds  1750-1782 pg 84)

29 May 1754 - John Davis of Newport Parish to his son, Wm Davis, for Love and Affection.. (?) acres (being the land "I now live on" and the plantation "I bought of Wm Davis and Richard Webb" along with a plantation on Lawnes Creek that "I bought from Benjamin Brantley plus Negroes and 1/2 of my personal estate")  Wit: Joseph Jones, Edward Dews, and Ambrose Proctor   John Davis   (Pg 265)  

Note Pg 266 .. Wm Davis refers to the death of my loving son Wm Davis   Wit:  Joseph Jones, Thomas Ward, and Ambrose Proctor  William Davis  Rec 5 Sep 1754  (IoW Co VA Deeds  1750-1782)
Feb 6 1755 - John Meacom to Richard Jones… 100 acres on the east side of the first swamp of Blackwater (being land willed by Edward Brantley, dec'd to his grandson, Edward Brantley, dec'd and it descended to John Brantley as Son and Heir at Law to the said Edward Brantley the younger and was since sold by him to Joseph Atkinson of 9 Apr 1747 who sold it to John Meacom on 1 Feb 1749) adjoining Joseph Maddera, Seth Hunter, Thomas Barlow and the line of the land James Ingles bought from John Davis        Rec 6 Feb 1755  (IoW Co VA Deeds Bk 9 1752-1758 pg 310)

Mar 4 1756 -   Platt of the boundary of the lands of Richard Jones, John Meacom, and Samuel Jones. Signed Richard Baker, Surveyor, Seth Hunter, Nicholas Miller, James Derring, Samuel Willson, John Jordan, Francis Wrenn, Thomas Goodson, Thomas Coffer, Joseph Madera, Thomas Barlow, William Brantley and John Coffer.   Rec  1 Apr 1756 (IoW Co VA Deeds Bk 9 1752-1758 pg396)

August 16, 1756. Nathanal Morrell, grantee - NOTE Location: Southampton County. NOTE Description: 200 acres on the north side of Meherrin River adjoining Joshua Claud, Ruth Brantley and extending. NOTE Source: Land Office Patents No. 33, 1756-1761 (v.1, 2, 3 & 4 p.1-1095), p. 304 (Reel 31-32). NOTE Part of the index to the recorded copies of patents for land issued by the Secretary of the Colony serving as the colonial Land Office. The collection is housed in the Archives at the Library of Virginia. OTHER FORMAT Available on microfilm. Virginia State Land Office. Patents 1-42, reels 1-41.   

JAN 5 1757 Isle of Wight County and Newport Parish  Elizabeth Brantley  to for love and good will I have for my children.   Children: John, Benjamin, Francis Brantley & Mary Thomas Negroes Boys; Sam and Bob

Witness:  James Tooke Scott, & Thomas Whitfield

-------

Jan 8 1757 - John Hyman of Isle of Wight to Francis Russwurm of York Co  100 acres (being land willed by Edward Brantley Sr, dec'd on 13 Mar 1688 to his daughter Mary Brantley, and it descended to John Deberry as son and heir of the said Mary Brantley and he sold it to Thomas Royall on May 4 1716 and it was then sold by Thomas Royal, son and heir o the said Thomas Royall, to William Harrison on 27 Jan 1739 who sold it to John Meacom on 2 Nov 1749 and he sold it to John Hyndman on 3 Oct 1754) adjoining Ashen Swamp and Phillip Brantley   Wit:  Samuel Whitworth, Edward Archer and George Purdie  Rec.  6 Oct 1757 (IoW Co VA Deeds 1750-1782 pg 515)

1755/57 Isle of Wight County  - Willison Brantley made surveyor of road in room of John Barlow.  

Jan 1 1758 - Lease of Richard Reynolds to John Brantley.. ? acres (being the land where Mary Goodson lived last)   Wit:  George Benn and Wm Ponsonby   Rec Aug 3 1758 (IoW Co VA Deeds Bk 10 1758-1762 pg28)
1758  (initial part on preceding page - missed)  …adjoining Thomas Kemp and the former line of James Atkinson.. and another tract of 300 acres in the Upper Parish adjoining William Camp, said Croft, Joseph Holliman, John Holliman, Arthur Crocker, Samuel 
, Thomas Moor, Reubin Cook, and Soloman Stephenson  Wit: Benjamin Pynes, Wilson Brantley and Thomas Cole  Rec 7 Sep 1758  (IoW Co VA Deeds  1750-1782 pg abt 32) 

28 Sep1758.  Wilson Brantley, grantee.   Location: Isle of Wight County. 

Description: 94 acres on the south side of James River. Adjoining the land of Willm., Harrison, Brantley's patent land, Samuel Wilson and Thomas Barlow's land. 

Source: Land Office Patents No. 33, 1756-1761 (v.1, 2, 3 & 4 p.1-1095), p. 494 (Reel 31-32).

28 Sep1758.  Vicent Brantley, grantee.   Location: Isle of Wight County. 

Description: 94 acres on the south side of James River. Adjoining the land of Willm., Harrison, Brantley's patent land, Samuel Wilson and Thomas Barlow's land. 

Source: Land Office Patents No. 33, 1756-1761 (v.1, 2, 3 & 4 p.1-1095), p. 494 (Reel 31-32).

Oct 23 1758 - Francis Russwurm of Isle of Wight to Robert Fry of Nansemond Co.. 100 acres (v=being willed by Edward Brantley Sr on 30 Mar 1688 to his daughter, Mary Brantley , and it descended to her so and heir John Deberry who sold it to Thomas Royall on 4 May 1716 and it was then sold by Thomas Royall, son and heir of the aforesaid Thomas Royall, to William Harrison on 22 Jan 1739 who sold it on 2 Nov 1749 to John Meacom who sold it to John Hayndman on 3 Oct 1754) adjoining Ashen Swamp and Phillip Brantley.  Wit: James Shedden, Charles Fulgham and William Robertson  Rec 2 Nov 1758  (IoW Co VA Deeds  1750-1782 pg 39)
Aug 31 1759 - John Mayo of Beaufort Co in NC to John Fowler of SoHampton Co VA 100 acres on the west side of Kingsale Swamp adjoining Benjamin Durden and the Beaverdam Swamp  Wit:  James Jordan Scott, Richard Beal, John Brantley and John Beal Jr  Rec Apr 3 1760  (IoW Co VA Deeds Bk 10 1758-1762 pg189)

Jan 3 1761 - .. Benjamin Davis to his daughter, Frances Davis.. the plantation that Wm Wrenn now lives on.  Wit: John Brantley and Sarah Bridger  Rec Jun 2 1761   (IoW Co VA Deeds  1750-1782 pg 282)
Jun 19 1761 - Lewis Meacom of Newport Parish to Nicholas Casey of the same .. 30 acres which formerly belonged to John Potter) on Pagan Creek.  Lewis Meacom bought the land from Joseph Woodson  Wit Benjamin Harrison, Wm Harrison, and Thomas Brantley  Rec: Aug 6 1761   (IoW Co VA Deeds  Bk 10 1758-1762 pg 301)
Jan 5 1764 .. Joseph Madera to John Jordan.. 34 acres adjoining Thomas Barlow, William White, and Wilson Brantley  Wit: James Jordan, George Hall and John Ward  Rec: 5 Jan 1764   (IoW Co VA Deeds Bk 11  1761-1765 pg 201)
Apr 5 1764 ..John Miller of Newport Parish and wife, Mary Miller to John Mallory of the same.. 84 acres in Newport Parish adjoining Thomas Brantley, Sarah Ingram, Days Neck Road and Soloman Willson  Rec 6 Apr 1764  (IoW Co VA Deeds  1750-1782 pg 212)
Feb 7 1765 .. Wilson Brantley and wife, Mary Brantley, to John Jordan .. 65 acres adjoining the land John Jordan bought from Joseph Madera, Thomas Barlow, Samuel Wilson and William White  Rec 7 Feb 1765   (IoW Co VA Deeds Bk 11  1761-1765 pg 255)
Oct 3 1765 ..Lease of Thomas Day to Benjamin Brantley.. (?) acres (being all of the land whereon said Brantley now lives except the part reserved by said Day adjoining William Glover, Thomas Day, John Wrenn and James Lupo.  Rec 3 Oct 1765  (IoW Co VA Deeds  Bk 12 1765-1772 pg 32)
Jun 16 1767 ..Henry Harrison of Isle of Wight to Robert Fry of Elizabeth City Co the Borough of Norfolk.. 50 acres (being land willed by William Harrison, dec'd to the said Henry Harrison on 11 Oct 1762) adjoining Robert Try, Widow Murry, Robert Burwell and Wilson Brantley  Wit:  Gabriel Gibbs, Thomas Seawell and Thomas Barlow  Rec 2 1767 (IoW Co VA Deeds  1750-1782 pg 177)
Feb 17 1770 .. Lease of Richard Reynolds to Joseph Brantley, both of Newport Parish (?) acres (being the patent on which he now lives)  Wit: Anthony Holliday, Roland Reynolds and Samuel Godfrey  Rec: May 3 1770  (IoW Co VA Deeds 1750 -1782 pg 359)
Aug 6 1772 ..John Wills dec'd in the middle of April gave to his son, James Wills.. one Negro boy named Joe  Rec: 6 Aug 1772  Wit:  Willis Wills & Elizabeth Brantley (IoW Co VA Deeds  1750-1782  pg 501)
May 4 1775 .. Lease of Rowland Reynolds to Lemuel Godfrey, both of Newport Parish.. 100 acres adjoining Thomas Smith and Joseph Brantley  Rec 7 Sep 1775  (IoW Co VA Deeds  1750-1782  pg 306)
********************************************************************************************

Later Deeds 

Will of Francis Brantley

1814

Son James, son Willis, son Joseph Brantley.  

********************************************************************************************

1815 Directory of Virginia Lndowners  - Isle of Wight







Distance & Direction from Isle of Wight Ct House

Elizabeth Brantley  
life

Smith's Neck

15NE  

Frances Brantley
 (of Thomas dec'd) heirs
Long Neck

 8 NE

Thomas Brantley
 Sr


Peggan Creek

 9 NE

****************************************************************************************





                         ISLE of WIGHT COUNTY VIRGINIA                                                                                                      

Court Order Books

Date?  Phillip Brantly appointed Surveyor of the road in the room of Albert Jones, Gent and ordered that he keep same in repairs as the law directs. Pg 175

-----

Oct 20 1748 - Will of Mary Deshey... to cousin James Wrenn the plantation which I now live on & negroes.  To James a negro fellow name Peter on the proviso that said James do pay to the 2 daughters of Ann Brancy, the wife of Francis Bracy the sum of 500 pds on their marriage day or age 18, further James is to pay John Wrenn, Joseph Wrenn, Wm Wrenn, Mary Brantly, Elizabeth Brantly & Martha Bedgoods children the sum of L20 currency to be eq divided between the said brothers and sisters.  My cousins James & Joseph Jordon two feather beds.  Cousin James Wrenn, the first foal that the mare brings.  Cousins James & Richard Jordon executors.  Wit Tho Smith, W, Glover, John Chestnut, 





 -Pg 162

-----

Date?  Phillip Brantly appointed Surveyor of the road in the room of Albert Jones, Gent and ordered that he keep same in repairs as the law directs. Pg 175

-----

May 1748 - Henry Applewhite vs Phillip Brantley;  Phillip lost  (Must be Henry Sr as Jr is dead in 1745).
-----

June 1750 - Henry Applewhite vs Phillip Brantley  - short unreadable – see SoHampton (Must be Henry Sr as Jr is dead in 1745).
-----

Feb 7 1750 - John Meacom vs Edward Brantley - squabble over land -Brantley says not guilty of trespass Pg 297

-----

Jul 1750 - John Meacom vs Edward Brantley - squabble over land - Brantley says not guilty of trespass Pg 257

-----

Feb 7 1750 - Elizabeth Brantley vs George Wilson - trespass charge - Edward Brantley on jury.  Pg 297

-----

Mar 8 1750 -  John Meacom vs Edward Brantley - squabble over land resolved - Edward had placed "chains on the land" -  Jury said that they had contracted a surveyor and they find this land to be part of the land left to Mary Brantley, by the will of her father, Edward Brantley dec'd, in Mar 1688; that she later married Peter DeBerry; after both Mary and Peter died, son John received the land; that he sold the land to Thomas Royal, who left it to his son Thomas Royal, who sold it to Wm Harrison who sold it to plaintiff Meacom.  Hard to read seems to have found in favor of Meacom.

-----

Mar 8 1750 - Elizabeth Brantley vs George Wilson - Trespass charge resolved - Elizabeth lost; had to pay 170 lbs of tobacco for 6 days court attendance.

-----

Oct 1751 - Consecutive entries-  On motions of Edward Brantley, then Mary Brantley, as evidence of Francis Wrenn at their suits of Thomas White an infant, by John Meacom, his guardian.  It was ordered that the said Wrenn do pay both 150 lbs of tobacco for 6 days court attendance.

-----

Oct 1751 - John Brantly and Edward Brantly land ordered surveyed

-----

Dec 1759 - Valentine Jenkins Admr of estate of Benjamin Brantley dec'd against Thomas Whitfield Jr and  Mary, his wife on debt to him.  Ditto Jan, Nov 1760, and Jun 1761

-----

Jan 1760 - John Brantley was on Jury.

-----

Dec 1760 - Sylvia Brantley petitioned court for admr of estate of John Brantley dec'd .  Bartholomew Lightfoot, Christopher Reynolds, Wm Richardson, and Jesse Atkinson, appointed appraisers.

-----

 Aug 1761 - Indenture & Receipt from Lewis Meacom & Nicholas Casey proved by Oath of Benjamin Harrison, Wm Harrison, and Thomas Brantley.

-----

Jul 7 1801 - Josiah Brantley,  orphan of Richard Brantley, is to be bound out to Nicholas Jordan.  Dick and Sam, Negro boys liberated by Elizabeth Thomas, are to be bound out to Robert Jordan.  Pg 678

********************************************************************************************
Abstracted records from IoW Images by familySearch

Chancery Record Vol 1 1832-1908 pg 2:  - May 13, 1835  Joseph B Whitehead adm’r of Joseph Brantley dec’s against Willis H Woodley surviving exor:? of Andrew Woodley dec’d.   $92.12 with interest thereon to be compounded after the rate of 6 % per annum and $41.33 cost.  Viewed 35 of the 70 images 12/12/14
******************************************************************************************
Court Fee Book Vol 1 1773 Pg 5– Jesse Bedgood vrs Thomas Brantley   Att’  adr Shields, Evans  
******************************************************************************************

Court Fee Book Vol 1 1773 Pg 8– Nov   Copy Deed and Cost – Brantley   (viewed 1st 25 pages  of 80+- Vol 1)
******************************************************************************************

Court Fee Book Vol 7 1796  Pg 78 - Mar 18th  Jermina Brantley to app’l  persons to settle Brantley’s est 
******************************************************************************************

Court Fee Book Vol 9 1798  Pg 19 – Feb   James Brantley  Jones on peto 26 new sum 18 (only Brantley in index)
******************************************************************************************

Court Fee Book Vol 10 1799  Pg 68 – Jun   James Brantley  Peto & Sum’ vs Miller’s Adm’r 87  (only Brantley in index)

******************************************************************************************

Court Fee Book Vol 2 1791  Pg 3 – Feb   James Brantley adm’r of  Willis Brantley   dec  Sdmin on Brantley’s est

Copy Deed & etc Willis Brantley v Frorce’s? Adm’r   
******************************************************************************************

Court Fee Book Vol 2 1791  Pg 38 - Cary Brantley -  page missing

******************************************************************************************

******************************************************************************************

******************************************************************************************

CAVALIERS AND PIONEERS

Abstracts of Virginia Land Patents and Grants

Abstracted by

Nell Marion Nugent

VOLUME THREE:  1695 - 1732

Virginia State Library

Richmond

1979

COL. ARTHUR SMITH, 1100 acs. in the Low. Par. of Wight Co; on S. side of Currewaugh Sw., 20 Nov. 1683, p. 333.  Beg. at land taken by him and Limescott; to Robt. Lawrence, Junr; on Hodges Councill; to Col. Joseph Bridger, & Granted Thomas Parnell, 20 Apr. 1680, deserted, & now granted by order, &; trans. of 22 part: Richd. Burgesse, Richd Groves, Ed North, Richd Dean, Hen. Thompson, Jon. Gee, Rob Medle, Jon. Seward, Jon. Williams, Ed Brantley, Wm. Fry, Antho. Matthews, Gersyon  Gromwel, Jon. Lippet, Phill, Plumly, Bar. Farthing, Eli. Willis, Edmd. Pullam, Tho. Lawly, Tho. Somersale, Jon Humpry, Jon. Meader.

MR. ROBERT FLAKE; 170 acres of Isle of Wight County, between lands of Tooke, Capt England, Thomas Blake, Edward Brantley; adjacent Mr. Newman near the dancing place, &c; 20 1685, pg 446.  Transportation of 4 persons.  

MAJOR ARTHUR ALLEN 170 acres Upper Parish of Isle of Wight County, 20 Oct 1691, pg 174.  Adjacent Thomas Blake; Mr. Tooke; Mr. Newman; Capt England; Edward Brantley; & near the Dancing Place.  Granted Mr. Robert Flake, 20 Apr 1685, deserted, & now granted by order &c.  Imp. of 4 pers:  Jno Greenwood, Robert Spather, Hester Madler, Tho. Horswell.

EDWARD BRANTLEY, 400 acres (N.L), Isle of Wight Co.; near Saphony old fort; by Meherrin River; 18 Mar 1717, p 372.  For services performed in making the new settlement for the Saponie Indians at Christana, & c.  (Martin Middleton also granted 90 acres next to Edward for same reason)

RICHARD SMITH, 390 acres (N.L.) Isle of Wight County; on south side of Meherrin River; (part of land whereon the Sapone Indians lately dwelt & which they surrendered in exchange for a like quainty assighned them at Christinna); being in the old Saphone old field, cor of Edward Brantley; 20 Feb 1719, p 458

EDWARD BRANTLEY; 225 acres (N.L.) Isle of Wight County; on both sides of the gr. Reedy branch of Flat Swamp; adj William Simmons' land; 11 July 1719, p 425 25 schillings.

THOMAS DUNN of James Count; 200 acres (N.L.), Isle of Wight Co; on both sides of the gr. Reedy Br. of the Flatt Sw; cor. of Edward Brantley ; & down Dunn's Br; 21 Feb 1720, p 57. 20 Shillings.

WILLIAM KENNEY, of New Kent County; 400 acres (N.L.) Isle of Wight County on East side of the flatt swamp; adjacent Alexander Walker; & Edward Brantley; by the Eale root Branch; 18 Feb 1722, pg 167, 40 schillings

PHILLIP BRANTLEY JUNIOR; 80 acres (N.L.) Isle of Wight County; south side of the main Black Water Swamp; on East side of the Cedar Swamp; on north side of Ploey's  I'land pocoson; adjacent Richard Williams' land; 22 Feb 1724, p 216.  10 Schillings.

BENJAMIN CHAPMAN McDONALDSON; of Surry County; 250 acres (N.L.) Isle of Wight County; on south side of Meherin River; beginning at Edward Brantley's land; down run of the Myery Meadow; to Richard Jackson's land 22Feb 1724, pg 226.  26 schillings.

EDWARD BRANTLEY, 140 acs. (N.L.), Is. of Wight Co; on N. side of the Flatt Sw; cor. of Anthony Frankoes land; on a Mill pond by the gr Reedy Br., just above mouth of Herbert's Br; 24 Mar. 1725, p. 467. 15 Shill.

THOMAS HARRIS, 290 acres (N.L.) Isle of Wight County; north side of Meherin River, & on both sides of Herbert's Branch; adjacent Edward Brantley; & William Simmons' line; 24 Mar 1725.  pg 440  30 schillings.

continued

CAVALIERS AND PIONEERS

NICHOLAS COBB, 200 acres (N.L.), Upper Parish Isle of Wight County; north side of Nottoway River; on East side of cedar Swamp adjacent James Edwards and Phillip Brantley; 26 June 1731, pg 169.  20 schillings.
------
Related abstract Land Patents NICHOLAS COBB, 80 acres Isle of Wight, now Southampton on the s side of the main Blackwater Swamp p 22 Feb 1724 bounded by the east side of the Cedar Swamp and the North S of the Poley Island Pocoson, a c of Richard Williams' Land and John Brantley in whom the said land is since vested failed to pay Quitrents and make cultivation and Improvements and Nicholas Cobb Sr made suit and obtaind a G for the same Feb 12, 1755
------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

Extract from 

Nov 16 1721...Elizabeth Whitaker of Warrick County, Executrix of the last will of Wm Amos, dec’d late of Isle of Wight County to Mathew Wills (Wells) of Warrick County..  12 acres (being land left by Wm Amos) adjoining John Brantly, the son of Philip Brantly, Thomas Wood, decd. and Lawnes Creek. 

Wit:  Nathaniel Jones and Richard Whitaker   REC:  Nov 27 1721.

CAVALIERS AND PIONEERS

Va Land Patent & Grants

1749 - 1762

Feb 12, 1755 - Nicholas Cobb, 80 acres Sohampton Co on the S Side of the main black Water Beg on the E Side of the Cedar Sw and N side of the Poley Island adj Richard Williams 10 Shill  Whereas by Pat 22 Feb 1724/25 Gtd to Phillip Brantley [Phillip Brantley Jur PB 12 P 215] then in Isle of Wight Co now Sohampton And Whereas John Brantley in whom the right & Title of sd L is since become Vested hath failed t pay Quitrents and to make Cultiv and Improv and Nicholas Cobb Senr hath made Humble Suit and hath obtained a G for the same

Aug 16, 1756 - Nathaniel Morrell, 200 acres Sohampton County on the N side of Meherrin River down Herberts Branch

& Down it's SW fork, up the Pasture Br; adj Joshua Claud, Ruth Brantley, John Thomas, & Valentine White.

Aug 16, 1756 - Joseph Everett, 280 acres Southampton Co on the S side of Nottoway Riv by the Wolf Pitt Br by the side of the Piney Pocoson adj Robert Vick, William Vick & Edward Brantley  p.140

------

Patent

July 12 1762.   Jesse Harris, grantee   NOTE Location: Southampton County. NOTE Grantee(s): Jesse and Mary Harris; James and Ruth Womack. NOTE Description: 255 acres on the north side of Meherrin River adjoining John Brantley, John Mundall, and James Ramsey. NOTE Source: Land Office Patents No. 34, 1756-1765, p. 1023 (Reel 33-34). NOTE See also the following surname(s): Harris. NOTE Part of the index to the recorded copies of patents for land issued by the Secretary of the Colony serving as the colonial Land Office. The collection is housed in the Archives at the Library of Virginia.  Virginia State Land Office. Patents 1-42, reels 1-41.    Subject Va SoHampton Co Land Grants

------

Jul 12 1762 - Jesse Harris and his wife and James Womack and his wife 255 acres Sohampton Co on the N side Meherrin River adj John Brantley, John Mundall, James Ramsey, Francis Exum, & James Brantley  p, 1023

------

Jul 12 1762 - James Womack and his wife and Jesse Harris and his wife 100 acres Sohampton Co on the N side Meherrin River adj Joseph Franks, John Gladis, Joshua Claud, Thomas Harris, & James Brantley  p, 1025

****************************************************************************************

VIRGINIA

SOUTHAMPTON COUNTY

CEMETARY RECORDS

1.  BRANTLEY, No Name

2.  Male

3.  22 Jan. 1869 Southampton Co.

4.  Unknown

5.  1 yr 3 mons

6.  Wm. E. Mary Brantley

7.  Southampton Co. 

8.  -

9.  -

10. John Camp

1.  BRANTLEY, Alice

2.  Female

3.  30 Jan. 1867 Southampton Co.

4.  Diarrhea

5.  4 mons 20 days

6.  Orris and Jane Brantley

7.  Southampton Co.

8.  -

9.  -

10. O. Brantley, father

1.  BRANTLEY, George

2.  Male

3.  7 July 1866 Southampton Co.

4.  Diarrhea

5.  20 yrs 9 mons 18days

6.  Dred and Bettie Brantley

7.  Southampton Co.

8.  Farmer

9.  Unmarried

1.  BRANTLEY, Ida

2.  Female

3.  4 Jan. 1867 Southampton Co.

4.  Diarhoea

5.  5 mons

6.  Orris and Jame Brantley

7.  Southampton Co.

8.  -

9.  -

10. O. Brantley, father

1.  BRANTLEY, Margaret

2.  Female

3.  3 Oct. 1866 Southampton Co.

4.  Consumption

5.  52

6.  -

7.  Southampton Co.

8.  Laborer

9.  Unmarried

10. J. Camp, head of family

REVOLUNTIONARY WAR RECORDS, VIRGINIA

6686
Brantley, James (and Rutha Mason formerly Rutha Brantley and who are the only surviving children and heirs of Britain Brantley, decd.)


Pvt    3 years

---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------
Sohampton Co Court Order Books

Aug 9, 1753 - Phillip Brantley  vs Henry Applewhite -  Henry defaulted on debt; Brantley awarded 6 pds & 6 shillings

******************************************************************************************

Southampton County Deeds

Deed book by Forrest King

Mar 15 1755: PHILLIP BRANTLY to JESSE BROWN dated 100 acres (bought from JOHN LEWIS), S: PHILLIP (P) BRANTLEY, W: DIOS (signed) WRIGHT, MARTHA (signed) WILKINSON, and MARTHA (signed) DRAKE Pages 73-74

Feb 4 1758 PHILLIP BRANTLEY and wife MARY to JOHN BRANTLEY dated 100 acres where sd. PHILLIP now lives adj. Anthonys Delight, Spring Branch, and JAMES PEDEN (sd. PHILLIP bought of JOHN LEWIS in 1752), S: PHILLIP (P) BRANTLEY and MARY (mark) BRANTLEY, W: JESSE (signed) BROWNE, A. (signed) JONES, JOB (signed) WRIGHT, and ELIZABETH (signed) JONES     Pages 214-215:

*****************************************************************************************
Abstractions fropm the SoH project
Thomas Barrow

On July 25, 1737, the estate of Edward Brantley was appraised by Thomas Barrow, et. al (ID-87)
----
On December 22, 1740, the estate of William Killebrew of Isle of Wight was appraised by Thomas Barrow, John Barrow and Martin Middleton. (Chapman, Vol. 2, p. 101) on Nove. 1, 1742, John Barrow witnessed the will of William Blake (ID-127).  
-----

Nov 9, 1749 -This indenture of testament between Thomas Barrow Sr and Elizabeth his wife on the one part and Richard Taylor on the other part and a memorandum of delivery of Sesin thereon endorsed were proved by the oaths of David Edmund & Richard Taylor two of the witnesses thereto.  Pg 28 Ct Order Book 1749-1754
------
This Infrnyutr of Bargain & Sale between Thomas Barrow & Elizabeth his wife n the one part and Richar taylor Sr on the other part of memorandum of difery of seson thereon endorse were proved by the oath of William Vaughn  witness thereto and the same having been before proved by the oath of  two other of the witnesses are ordered to be recorded. Pg 38 Ct Order Book 1749-1754
------

An indenture  of testament between Thomas Barrow Jr & Mary his wife of the one part and John Myrick of the other part and a memorandum of libery of seisen thereon endorsed were proved by the oath of Daniel Barrow, Newit Dreew, & Tipams? Blake witnesses thereto and are ordered to be recorded  pg 51 Ct Order Book 1749-1754

---------------------

Last will & Testiment pf Thomas Barrow was presented in Court by Richard Avery and Joseph Phillips two of the Extor’s ]
Pg 247 Ct Order Book 1759-1763

-----

Mar 12, 1763 - William Kennehew is by the Court appointed guardian to Hosea Barrow, orphan of Thomas Barrow, whereupon the said Wm Kennehew with Joshua Nicolson? His security  pg 279 Ct Order Book 1759-1763
-----

Mar 12, 1763 - Ordered that the Churchward ens of St Lukes Parish bind out Hosea Barrow an infant orphan of Thomas Barrow according to law.  Pg 280 Ct Order Book 1759-1763  
----

Sep 20, 1769 - An indenture of testament between Thomas Barrow of the one part & James Jones of the other part together with a mem’dum of livery of person thereon indorsed were proved byht he oaths of Geo Gurley Jr & Henry Gurley two of the witness thereto & layed for futher proof.  Pg 277 Ct Order Book 1768- 1772  No Brantleys
----------

Nov 3, 1763 – Inventory and account of sales of the estate of Thomas Barrow dec’d ……..  lengthy  states  sold to Thomas Blake a parcel of lumberbought.  Lots of buyers John Barrow, Henry Adams, James Wesbrooks, Robert Bittle, Simon Barrow, Samuel Kindred, Richard Avery, Wm turner, Thomas Lumbley, Elizabeth Barrow, Will’m Barrow, Arthur Waller, James ramsey,  Nathaniel Pitman, Joshua Nicholson, Nathan Pope, Benjamin Harrison, Arthur Hart, David Edmunds,  John Phillips, James Griffin, Thomas Day,   NO Brantleys
Pg 21-23  Will book 2   1768- 1772  

Apr 11, 1765 Others mentioned on pg 128 -  Peter Butts, Sarah Crocker?, Wm Kennebrough guardian of Hosea, Elizabeth Barrow. 
----
Nov 12, 1771 - John Myrick in will says he had bought land from Thomas Barrow on the Meherine River   No Brantleys 
Pg 427   Will book 2   1768- 1772  

Apr 12, 1750 - Thomas Barrow Jr and wife Mary of the County of Edgecombe in N.C. to John Myrick of SoHampton County Deed Bk 1 1749-
******************************************************************************************

WILL OF THOMAS BARROW
"I, THOMAS BARROW, of the County of Southampton, being of sound mind and perfect memory, do make this my last Will and Testament in manner following: First, I commit my soul to God who gave it and my body to the earth, to be decently buried by my executors and what Worldly estate I am possessed, I dispose of as follows: --Imprimis, I give unto my loving wife, ELIZABETH, during her natural life, the Plantation whereon my two sons, THOMAS and SIMON, had formerly lived, and near my old dwellings, together with 150 acres of land belonging and adjoining the same, according to known and reputed bounds thereof, to be the same more or less and after the death of my wife, I give the same and Plantation to my grandson, THOMAS BARROW III, son of SIMON and to his heirs forever. I further give my wife all that part of my estate I had with her or the value thereof which is about ten pounds. I further give unto my wife during her life the labor of one of my Negroes as she shall make choice of. I likewise give unto my wife during her life, one-third of my personal estate, my Negroes excepted. I further give unto my wife half of all the ready cash that shall be in the house at my death. My will and desire that all that part of my estate lent my wife, after her death, be sold by my executors and equally divided amongst all my children -- that is her part that falls to my daughter, ELIZABETH, be equally divided among her children, and the part that falls to my son, THOMAS, Jr., be equally divided among his children.
Item -- I give to my son SIMON BARROW, the best suit of my wearing clothes and the rest of my wearing clothes should be equally divided between my sons, JOHN and THOMAS,Jr.
Item -- My will and desire is that all of my estate both real and personal not already disposed of, be sold by my executor for the best price that is to be had, and the money arising therefrom be equally divided by my SEVEN CHILDREN to wit: JOHN and THOMAS,Jr., part to be divided amongst his children; SIMON, and ELIZABETH'S part to be divided amongst her children; JANE and SARAH and FORTUNE; I do hereby empower my executors to convey by deeds a good and lawful title to all my land ordered by me to be sold to any purchaser whatsoever as I might have done myself had I been living. My will and desire is that my estate be not appraised and lastly, I do hereby constitute and appoint Richard Avery and Joseph Phillips and my loving wife, ELIZABETH BARROW, my whole and sole executors of this my last Will and Testament, revoking all other Wills by me made. In witness whereof, I have hereto set my hand and seal this 26th day of November, one thousand seven hundred and sixty-one,A.D.
Teste: David Edmunds THOMAS BARROW (Seal)
Thomas Day
Howell Edmunds"
******************************************************************************************

******************************************************************************************

Southampton County Deeds

 From the File of Wm Kizziah

May 9 1758 - Phillip and Mary Brantly, to Phillip Brown, (Isle of Wight marriages that Phillip married Mrs. Mary Applewhite  {Her maiden name was "Counsel}

-----

Jun 10 1764 - John Brantley & wife Elizabeth, sell to Wm Williams, all of plantation or tract of land whereon the said John Brantley now lives in the Parish of Nottaway and County of Southampton, containing by estimate 370 acres, formerly granted to by divers deeds and conveyances transferred to the said Brantley.

-----

Mar or May 15 1775 - Phillip Brantly of Parish of Nottoway, to John Brantly for 32 pounds, 15 shillings, current money of Va, the land where Phillip now lives, which he bought of John Lewis in 1752, containing 100 acres--- (Phillip left will in Halifax County, NC 1775, wife Mary and sons Lewis and William){ no- will did not say they were his sons "those brothers"}  Question date?
-----

Mar 10 1785 -  Etheldred Brantley & wife Rebecca, deed.  (Etheldred m Rebecca Porter) 

-----

 May 9 1788 - Etheldred Brantly witnessed will of Wm Brooks

-----

Feb 11 1796 - Etheldred Brantley to John Whitaker

-----

1798 - William Brantley and wife Sarah, sell for 120 pounds, cert land in Sohampton County. (Wm Brantly and Sarah Drake were married Nov 17 1791)

-----

Aug 1800 -  Henry Brantly and wife Martha, deed.

-----

1811 to 1831 - Cordall Brantley and wife Pheby make several deeds in this period.

-----

1846 - Wm Brantley & wife Ann E make deeds in 1864-48-54-62

-----

Feb 20 1858 - Heman L Brantley to John whitehead of Sohampton Co. Heman  is listed as of Greenville Co VA

----

May 8 1858 - Heman L Brantley & wife Sophis Louise Smith make deed.

-----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

Jan 18 1759 - Robert Williams and wife Sarah to Thomas Brantley of ___ County in Virginia 190 acres on the So-side of the Meheron River adjoining the Cyprus Swamp; land now in possession of said Thomas Brantley  DOC on File.
SoHampton Project Find

Aug 20, 1838   Thomas Brantley and Elisha Brantley assigned by the court to work from the nottway swamp to the new road near Silas Vicks.

WILLS AND ADMINISTRATIONS

OF

SOUTHAMPTON COUNTY, VIRGINIA

1749 - 1800

By Blanch Adams Chapman

Phillip Brantley, appraiser of est of Mathes Williams - Feb 14 1750  

Phillip Brantley, witnessed will of Francis Wills -Jun 14 1750 

Phillip Brantley appraiser of est of Mathew Jones -Dec 14 1752  

David Baxter,.  Appraisal of estate ordered Nov.9, 1752, by  Phillip Brantley, John Brantley and Mathew Wills.   R. Dec. 13, 1752.  


Page 103.

John Brantley, wit will of Arthur Williams - Apr 4 1754

Bridgman Joyner,. Leg. - son Jacob; son Bridgman; son Jesse;  daughter Sara; daughter Ann; daughter Patience Bunn; 
grandaughters Ann and Sarah Bunn.  Exs. sons Bridgman and Jacob Joyner.  D. April 4, 1754.  
R. July 11, 1754.   Wit. James Jordan Scott, John Lewis, John Brantley.  








Page 148.

Garner, James.  Estate appraised by Mathew Wills, Phillip Brantley and John Pope.  R. Nov. 14, 1754.  








Page 155

Cobb, Nicholas of Nottoway Parish. Leg.-son Nicholas; son Henry; grandson William the tract on which his father,  William Cobb lived, adjoining his uncle Henry Cobb; son Samuel land belonging to old Phillip Brantley; son Lazarus, daughter Deborah Cobb.  Exs., sons Samuel and Lazarus Cobb.  D. May 24, 1752.  R. Nov. 121, 1756.  Wit. A. Jones, Phillip Brantley, John Vinkles. 


Page  208.

------

Related abstract Land Patents NICHOLAS COBB, 80 acres Isle of Wight, now Southampton on the s side of the main Blackwater Swamp p 22 Feb 1724 bounded by the east side of the Cedar Swamp and the North S of the Poley Island Pocoson, a c of Richard Williams' Land and John Brantley in whom the said land is since vested failed to pay Quitrents and make cultivation and Improvements and Nicholas Cobb Sr made suit and obtaind a G for the same Feb 12, 1755

-----
Edwards at death of his mother; Lila Lucas.  Estate to be divided by friends, Job Wright, James Fowler, John Bryant and Bridgman Joyner.  Exs., wife Anne and son William Williams.  D. Jan. 19, 1761.  R. April 9, 1761.  Wit. James Jordan Scott, Job Wright, John Brantley. 
Page 368

Kitchen, James.  Estate appraised by Job Wright, John Brantley and Thomas Brantley.  Signed, A. Jones, Adm. 
R. Jan. 12, 1764.  



Page 70

Transaction of Joshua Claud, dated Saturday Nov. 4, 1775, witnessed by John Pierce, Britain Brantley and John Blake.  R. Dec. 22, 1775.  



Page 141.

Wade, Christopher.  Of the Parish of Nottoway.  Leg.-son Wilson, land on which he and his family now dwell:

friend Sarah Turner the use of the plantation on which I now live bought of Samuel Eley; reversion to grandson John Wade and Samuel Wade; wife Ann;  daughter Sarah Wade; daughter Martha Wade.  Ex., friend Joshua Brantley.  D. Oct. 3, 1781.  R. June 13, 1782.   Wit. Joseph Mountford, Samuel Turner, Joyner Joyner (?)








Page 422

Christopher Wade,.  Signed, Joshua Brantley.  Estate appraised by Joseph Mountfortt, Thomas Mountfortt, 
William Joyner.  R. Nov. 13, 1783. 
 
Page 44.

Christopher Wade,.  Account current.  D. 1783.  Signed Joshua Brantley.  Paid legacies - Sara Turner. John


Wade, Ann Wade, Wilson Wade, Sarah Wade and Martha Wade.  Audited by Joseph Mountford and 
Shad. Lewis.  R.  May 13, 1784.  

Page 61.

John Porter,.  Account Current. Signed William Hines, Sheriff and William Blunt.  Paid Etheldred Brantley


for keeping the children; paid said Brantley his wife's part of the estate.  R.  Jan. 14, 1785   








Page 88.

continued

WILLS AND ADMINISTRATIONS

OF

SOUTHAMPTON COUNTY, VIRGINIA

1749 - 1800

By Blanch AdamsChapman

William Brooks,.  Of the Parish of St. Luke.  Leg.-daughter Ann Dunkin; to Hannah Swett, wife reversion to my 
son William Swett; Etheldred Brantley.  Exs., friends, Etheldred Brantley, Henry Bittle, Michael Warren. D.  May 9, 1788.  R. Oct. 9, 1788.  Wit. John Powell William Bittle, Joseph Curley.  








Page 276.

Porter, Thomas, Sr.  Leg.- wife Julan (written later Julia); son Thomas; son Henry the plantation on which Britton 


Porter now lives; son Newit, land on which Richard  Demory now lives; grandson Drury Porter when 
twenty one the land on which my son Solomon Porter formerly lived. Exs., wife and son Thomas 
Porter.  D. Aug. 7, 1785    R. Oct. 9, 1788.  Wit. Nathan Bryant, Etheldred Brantley. 








Page 276.

James Brantley,.  Estate appraised by .... Jan 9 1794

William Vaughan,.  Leg. - wife Ann; son William; son Thomas; son James land bought of Samuel Nicholson; son 
John; son Howell; son Henry.  Exs., brother Thomas Vaughan and friends Thomas Turner and Thomas 
Ridley.  D. Dec. 10, 1793.  R. Oct. 9, 1794.  Wit.  William Edmunds, Etheldred Brantley.  








Page 643.

Catherine Ramsey,.  Estate appraised by Etheldred Brantley, Henry Blunt, Willie Francis.  D. Feb. 26, 1795.  
R.   June 11, 1795.  



Page 692

John Dawson Harris,.  Leg.-John Edmunds Dawson; Edmond Turner; Polly Dawson; William Phillips; John and 
Bowling Barnes, sons of Bailey Barnes.  Exs., Edmund Turner and John E. Dawson.  D. April 6, 1796.  
R. April 15, 1796.  Wit. Henry Smith, William Sturgeaon, Henry Brantley.  








Page 737.

Etheldred Brantley,.  Estate appraised by William Edmunds William Blunt and John Moore.  D. Dec. 22, 
797.  
R. April 17, 1798.  


Page 53

Vaughan, William.  Appraisal.  Etheldred Brantley one of the appraisers died before the return was made.  
Appraised by Jesse Holt and Henry Bittle.  Signed, Thomas Vaughan and Thomas Turner, Exs.  R. Jan. 
20, 1800.  D. Nov. 7, 
1794.   


Page 170

Etheldred  Brantley, Appraisal (not signed).  D. May 22, 
1797.  R. June--, 1800. 








Page 190
--------------------------
Ken, you’ll remember that I am a Harris researcher  I sent you info about a year ago about my Jesse Harris having a wife Mary who I have pegged as being a Brantley; in fact a daughter of James and Ruth Brantley.  Well, I’m still searching every clue about Jesse’s family and I was recently in Southampton reading the Order Books (I live in Raleigh so can’t go easily) and ran across an item that included my Jesse Harris and Britain Brantley.  I went to your material to get this Britain Brantley placed and from what I read, I think you would like to have the item that is attached.  If you have problems opening it, let me know.   It appears that Jesse Harris is suing his brother-in-law. Beverly Peoples

Southampton, Order Book 1768-1772, Vol 1 page 234-235 (presented by Beverly Peoples)

Jesse Harris having obtained an attachment against the estate of Britain Brantly who hath privately absconded or so removed himself that the ordinary process of law cannot be served upon him for a debt due the said Harris, James Jones Jr. under sheriff for this county now made return that he had executed the same on the 14 head of hogs a parcel of corn and wheat 2 water pails one gun one frying pan bed and furniture one wash tub one hoe & ? a basket that he had likewise attached as the estate of S’d Brantly in the hands of Groves Sharpe and Benjamin Clifton Sr. and summoned them as garnishees.  This day came the plaintiff by his attorney the defendant not now appearing to repl’ the s’d effects on the motion of the plaintif who proved his account of five pounds to be just It is considered by the court that the plaintif recover against the sd defendant the said sum of five pounds this cash by him in this behalf appended? Grover Sharpe  a garnishee appeared & deposed that he hath a spinning wheel & gun & Benjamin Clifton deposed that he hath nothing of the effects of the sd defendant where upon it is ordered that the garnishee Sharpe deliver the goods in his hands to the sheriff of this county & that he sell the same together with the other attached effects at public auction for ready money & therewith discharge the aforesaid judgment or so much thereof as the sale shall amount to & the cash of this Just & that he also return an account of his proceedings herein to the court.  Signed Benjamin Simmons vs John Cockeran defendant  (DOC on file VA)
(note by Beverly:  interestingly Britain Brantley-whether the same one or not is unknown to me- appears in the Order books a number of times over the following years as witnesses or in other capacity)

*************************************************************************************************
NASEMOND COUNTY, VIRGINIA


Vestry Book of the Upper Parish

$3 paid cash to Jacob Brantley for keeping the ferry over Nottaway River

****************************************************************************************

I misread a old map (angle) in 1990 and decided that while the property may have laid across the Blackwater it definitely included lands on the west side and in what is now, Southampton County.  Again the property may have been in both counties, but the assurance, after further analysis, shows that it was the Isle of Wight side that was certain.
Stephen,  It is frustrating to me to hear FS response with regard to some of these issues.  When we discussed handing this off to FS, they did not bother to share with us that they had no plans to indexed the deed records, or in fact, as I now understand it, to even index the records at all in the near future.  It seems they got what they wanted “the project” and basically walked away from us, disregarding all the promises of the pass.  You can talk to my Stake President, Bishop, and a number of people involved in the project, both SoHampton County and IoW County and they will tell you of the effort we have made to get FS in the loop and create a launch for them in Virginia.  All I had heard for the last three years was that they could not break through in Virginia.

We manage to pull it off and this is where we are.

Steve, since we are now having to do the indexing ourselves, we would hope that FS would listen to our indexing priorities.  It is hard to understand why FS wants to take off on birth records, which for the most part, were not even recorded until the 20th century and put below them records that go back 200 to 350 years. We had no census back then and very few vital records. Too, a progenitor living back then will have hundreds of thousands of descendants, many who have been seeking for them for decades. while a person who was born in the late 1800s, is not likely to have even a thousand descendants and can meet and talk with relatives who even knew these people.

While we were originally told that you folks would index the records soon after the imaging, we are sitting here and have been for several months ready to begin indexing these records ourselves.  We could be indexing something, Court Order, Court Minute Books, etc.  These books contain NO indexes of any sort in most cases and go back 350 years.  There are millions of Americans who descend from these Virginia settlers.  I cannot understand, I have been doing research for 50 years. While I can understand why a birth record can seem important because of the amount of details it offers, I can’t understand how someone thinks these (howbeit few pre 1900) can be more productive than court room volumes that may contain 20 or 30 names on many pages and which go back hundreds of years and do in many cases identify lineages and family history. 

Deed books indexes reflect the names of grantors and grantees, but they do not include the names of other parties.  While we have thousands of deeds on file that convey lineage information, they are frequently missed by search of the deed book’s  index. See the example below, where four generations of the late 1600s through the mid-1700s are clearly identified by a deed, which would not have been found from the deed book’s own index or for that matter, in any other record known to us.

---------

Feb 1 1749...  Owen Jones to John Meacom... 100 acres on the east side of the first swamp on the Blackwater (being land willed by Edward Brantley, dec’d, to his grandson Edward Brantley the Younger, and the land descended from his son, John Brantley, as his Son and Heir, who sold it to Joseph Atkinson on Apr 9 1747, who then sold it to the said Owen Jones) adjoining James Tooke Scott, John Miller, John Wrenn, land formerly James Ingles and John Davis.     
---------

 We are encouraged that we may be able to get started indexing soon and hopefully proceed with the deed records too.

****************************************************************************************************
REVOLUTIONARY PENSION APPLICATION of SION COOPER. Number R2302, wife Mary.

To the honorable President and other members of the Senate and the Speaker and other members of the House of Representatives of the State of South Carolina.  The petition of Sion Cooper humbly shewth that he was during the war of the revolution an inhabitant of the State of North Carolina but was in the Army and served about half his time in this state.  He served the half of two tours of three months each and one of eighteen in South Carolina.  He served the first tour of three months under Capt. Lane under the command of General Butler. He served the second tour of three months under command of Capt. Bryant under Major John Humphries and under those officers at the Battle of Eutaw under General Greene during the tour of eighteen months while he was in South Carolina, Peace was made.  He saith that he was about sixteen years of age when he entered the Army.  That he served about eighteen months, the tour of 18 months he entered for he was discharged before the time expired as Peace was made. He says he never received any pay or clothing or any compensation whatever for his services.  He has resided in this state for about twenty-seven years, that he is now about sixty-six years of age, very poor, has no land, and but little property of any kind, has to labour now to maintain himself and wife and two daughters who live with him.  He is not able to labour much now and has lost the hearing very much.  He therefore prays your Honorable Body to Grant him a pension or such other relief as in your wisdom and charity shall seem meek (?) and as in duty bound he will ever pray.

Pendleton, 6th Nov. 1826.  In the presence of Joseph Grisham.

Sion Cooper signed with his mark.

The State of South Carolina, Pendleton District:  Before me personally came Sion Cooper and made oath that the facts stated in this annexed petition are in virtuous correct & true.  Sworn to 6th Nov. 1826 before Joseph Grisham, Notary Public & Ex Officio J. P.

Sion Cooper signed with his mark.

STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA Spartanburg District:  Personally came Daniel Amos before me, Joseph Camp, one of the Justice of the Peace for said District and after being duly sworn deposeth and saith that Sion Cooper was drafted as a Soldier in the Revolutionary War in the State of North Carolina, Wake County and served two three month tours  and was again drafted in the eighteen months service and marched and this deponent states that he believes his service was rendered mostly in South Carolina but what officers he served under or the exact time he was drafted he cannot tell but is in his opinion it was sometime between 1776 & 1781 as well as he recollects.  Sworn to and Subscribed this thirteenth day of December 1825 before me, Joseph Camp, JP.  Daniel Amos signed with his mark.

A sworn statement similar to the above statement by Daniel Amos is signed by ELIZABETH BYANS with her mark.

I, James A. Dendy ordinary of Pickens District do certify that Mary Cooper is the sworn Executrix of Sion Cooper, decd November 7th 1831. Signed: James A. Dendy, O. P. D. (Seal)

THE STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA, Pickens District:  Before the subscribing Justice of the said District personally came John Field, Sr. and made oath & says on his oath that Sion Cooper, a pensioner of this State who was a resident of Pickens Dist. did depart this life on the 6 day of March 1831.  Sworn to & subscribed this 7 No. 1831 before me (signed) B. Barton, JQ and John Field, Sr.

Also, Mary Cooper appeared at the same time and place and made oath to this said fact.  Sworn to and subscribed this day & date before written by me. Signed: B. Barton, JQ with Mary Cooper signing with her mark.

I, Bailey do certify that I am well acquainted with John Field, Sr. & Mary Cooper who made the above affidavit and that all faith & credit should be given to their vouchers.  Signed: Bailey Barton, JQ.

THE STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA, Pickens District:  Before me the subscribing Justice for the said district personally came and appeared Mary Cooper and made oath in due form of law and saith that she is the widow of Sion Cooper decd late a pensioner of this State and saith that all the property she is in possession of or was left in his possession at the time of the death of her husband will not amount to two hundred dollars and this deponent says she is the only wife that ever the said Sion Cooper, decd ever had and that she suffered with him in the glorious struggle for liberty.  Sworn to this 7 Nov. 1831 before me (Signed) B. Barton, with Mary Cooper signing with her mark.

I, Bailey Barton, Esq. one of the Justices of Quorum for Pickens District do certify that I have been long acquainted with Mary Cooper and do not hesitate to say she is a woman of good character and high faith should be given to her affidavit. I also believe her schedule to be true as is considered my knowledge.  Signed: B. Barton, JQ.

THE STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA, Greenville District:  On the 27th day of April A. D. 1852 personally appeared before the Court of Ordinary for Greenville District, (It being the court nearest the abode of the applicant) in the District and State aforesaid, "Ansell Cooper  a resident of Pickens District in the State above mentioned aged seventy-three years, who being duly sworn according to law doth on his oath make the following declarations in order to obtain the benefit of the Act of Congress passed July 4th A. D. 1836 declares that he is the oldest son of Sion Cooper and Mary Cooper deceased, late of the District last mentioned and State aforesaid, that Sion Cooper, his Father was a soldier of the Revolution and in his like time drew a pension of sixty dollars per annum from the State of South Carolina, as the paper herewith annexed sheweth,  that his Father, the said Sion Cooper aforesaid died on the 6th day of March A. D. 1832.*  That his Mother, Mary Cooper, subsequent to the death of her husband was placed upon the pension roll of the State aforesaid and drew half-pay up to her decease which occurred on the 8th day February A. D. 1852 --that his deponent is the oldest child of the Sion and Mary Cooper aforesaid and according to traditions was born on the 16th of June in the year A. D. 1779, that he has brothers and sisters; children of the said Sion and Mary Cooper aforesaid as follows (viz): Lewis Cooper, Nancy Smith (formerly Nancy Cooper), Polly Kelly (formerly Polly Cooper), Rahab Fields (formerly Rahab Cooper) and Delila Ferguson (formerly Delila Cooper).  That by tradition his Father and Mother, the aforesaid Sion Cooper and his Mother, whose maiden name was MARY BRANTLEY were married in the State of Virginia, (the county he does not now remember) in the year A. D. 1778 "by a Man by the name of Ricks." He make this declaration for the purposes of obtaining the arrearages of pension that may (yet) be due to his Father and his widow deceased for the Military Services rendered by his Father in the War of the Revolution by the Act of Congress aforesaid."  Sworn to and subscribed before the Court of Ordinary for the District and State aforesaid the day and year aforesaid in the Presence of Nelson No???.  Ansell Cooper signed with his mark.

And the said court do hereby declare their opinion that Ansell Cooper the above named applicant is the son of the said Sion and Mary Cooper deceased of the District of Pickens in the State aforesaid and that the said Sion Cooper was a Soldier of the Revolution as he declares and that he, the said Ansell Cooper is of the age he states and resides in Pickens District, and that the (Note: this is the end of the page and there is an "over" notation but this is all that was included in the order for copies of this document, which probably indicates the complete file was not copied).

*There is a discrepancy in the date of death given by Ancel Cooper in 1852 and the one given in 1831 by John Field, Sr. and Sion's wife, Mary. Other records indicate Sion Cooper died in 1831.

 

Barlow Study from VA File

WILLS and ADMINISTRATIONS of 
 ISLE OF WIGHT CO, VIRGINIA
1647 – 1800 BOOK I

1669 - Inventory and appraisal of the estate of Morgan Williams ordered May 3, 1669. Appraisers, - Thomas Barlow, John Brossio, Edward Brantley, Elias Fort.  Presented  by Dorthy Williams.  R. May 10, 1669 

-----

May 13 1669 -  Joseph Poole - Appraisal of estate ordered 3 May 1669 Appraisers, - Thomas Barlow, Edward Brantley, Charlews Williams, and Elias Fort.  Page 14/66

-----

1670 - Appraisal of estate of Thomas Dixon, taken by Thomas Barlow, Edward Brantley, Robert Roe, Elias Fort. Presented by Henry Martin who married the relict of  Thomas Dixon. R. Oct. 25, 1670.        

-----

Page 66

1675 - William Clay, son of John the elder, mentioned in his will probated in Isle of Wight, 1675, the following legatees:  Thomas, the son of my brother Thomas; Mary, youngest daughter of Henry Reynolds; brother John Clay's daughter Elizabeth; wife Judith Clay's lands to his daughter Elizabeth Clay after wife's decease.  Wife and GEORGE HARDY, Sr., Exrs., and account current of "what estate William Clay in Lawnes Creek died possessed" was made Feb. 1683/4 by MARY ARCHER and John Clay.  Her daughter, Elizabeth, married John Brantley; her daughter Sarah (posthumus) married George Barlow.

Dec 11 1694 - Petition of Geo Barlow & Sarah his wife for a writ of partition for division of certain lands lying on Lyon's creek  in this county which descended from Elizabeth Clay dec'd  (dg & legatee of Wm Clay dec'd)  to said Sarah, & Eliza (late wife of John Brantley sisters & coheiresses to said land.  Ordered that the sheriff do summons an able jury of freeholders of the vicinage to meet on said land the last day of Jan next & (accompanied by said shefiff & Mr Geo Williamson, surveyor of this country) are to make a fair & equal division of said land & appurtenances between said Barlow & Sarah his wife & said John Brantly who married the other coheiress. {Extracted form Vol 13 of the Va Genealogist}

-----

Feb 9 1694/5 - Pursuant to order of the last court the jury make report of a division of land lying on Lyon's Creek in this county between Geo Barlow & Sarah his wife and John Brantly, and it is the opinion of this court that said Barlow & wife ought to have their choice in this partition, who accordingly choose the 86 acres marked out by Geo Williamson, surveyor, in his plat of said land, containing 284 acres, the 86 acres with the housing & appurtenances thereunto belonging is therefore  allotted to said Barlow and wife, who give their consent that said Jno Brantly shall remain on said 86 acres till xtmas next, provided he commit no waste, and the other part of said land being 198 acres is thereby allotted to said Jno Brantley.   --- The jury men impaneled to make a partition of land between Geo Barlow & his  wife and Jno Brantly have order for two days pay agst said Barlow & Brantly {Extracted form Vol 13 of the Va Genealogist}   

-----

1704 - Capt. Robert Kae. Appraisal by John Brantley, George Barloe, William Thomas, Richard Hardy. April 10, 1704      

(Barlow)
Page 62/464

-----

1711 - John George. Appraisal by John Brantley, Thomas Hardy, George Kiddick and George Barlow.    abt  1711                



Page 72/527

-----

1712 - ....George died intestate, for his estate was appraised by Thomas Hardy, John Brantley, George Riddick and George Barlow (no date) 1712.  It is probable that he left a son, William George, who married Sara Thorpe, sister of John Thropp (names spelled both ways in records).  John Thropp in his will dated Jan. 20, 1720/2 1721 gave a legacy to his sister, Sara Batts' two sons, "William George and Elias George that she had by William George." (C-11-15) William George and Thomas Thropp witnessed the will of Richard Bennett,...

-----

1718 - George Barlow: Leg. - son John; daughter Elizabeth; son George; daughter Sarah; daughter Mary; son Thomas Wife Extx. with the assistance of John Brantley D. December 10, 1718   R. Wit. John Brantley, Hester Brantley.
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1728 -Sara Barlow,  Leg.-daughter Mary; son Thomas; granddaughter Sara Carrell.  Ex., son Thomas Barlow. 

D.  March 19, 1728/29    R.  August 25, 1729        Wit.  William Dixon, John Brantley, Clay Brantley.
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Apr 20 1733... Benjamin Brantley of the upper parish to John Davis of the same.. 150 acres in the upper parish on Lyons Creek adjoining William Dew, the River and Barlow.  Wit:  John Sommerell and John Hodges.    REC: Apr 23 1733

------

Feb 6 1755 - John Meacom to Richard Jones… 100 acres on the east side of the first swamp of Blackwater (being land willed by Edward Brantley, dec'd to his grandson, Edward Brantley, dec'd and it descended to John Brantley as Son and Heir at Law to the said Edward Brantley the younger and was since sold by him to Joseph Atkinson of 9 Apr 1747 who sold it to John Meacom on 1 Feb 1749) adjoining Joseph Maddera, Seth Hunter, Thomas Barlow and the line of the land James Ingles bought from John Davis        Rec 6 Feb 1755  (IoW Co VA Deeds Bk 9 1752-1758 pg 310)

Mar 4 1756 -   Platt of the boundary of the lands of Richard Jones, John Meacom, and Samuel Jones. Signed Richard Baker, Surveyor, Seth Hunter, Nicholas Miller, James Derring, Samuel Willson, John Jordan, Francis Wrenn, Thomas Goodson, Thomas Coffer, Joseph Madera, Thomas Barlow, William Brantley and John Coffer.   Rec  1 Apr 1756 (IoW Co VA Deeds Bk 9 1752-1758 pg396)

SEP 28 1758 - VINCENT BRANTLEY ISLE OF WIGHT CO
94 ACRES ON THE SOUTH SIDE OF THE JAMES RIVER, ADJOINING THE LAND OF Wm HARRISON, BRANTLEY'S PATENT LAND, SAMUEL WILSON & THOMAS BARLOW'S LAND

1763 - John Murry,.  Appraised by James Derring, John Barlow, Wilson Brantley.  R. October 6, 1763
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Jan 5 1764 .. Joseph Maddra to John Jordan.. 34 acres adjoining Thomas Barlow, William White, and Wilson Brantley  Wit: James Jordan, George Hall and John Ward  Rec: 5 Jan 1764   (IoW Co VA Deeds Bk 11  1761-1765 pg 201)
Feb 7 1765 .. Wilson Brantley and wife, Mary Brantley, to John Jordan .. 65 acres adjoining the land John Jordan bought from Joseph Madera, Thomas Barlow, Samuel Wilson and William White  Rec 7 Feb 1765   (IoW Co VA Deeds Bk 11  1761-1765 pg 255)
Jun 16 1767 ..Henry Harrison of Isle of Wight to Robert Fry of Elizabeth City Co the Borough of Norfolk.. 50 acres (being land willed by William Harrison, dec'd to the said Henry Harrison on 11 Oct 1762) adjoining Robert Try, Widow Murry, Robert Burwell and Wilson Brantley  Wit:  Gabriel Gibbs, Thomas Seawell and Thomas Barlow  Rec 2 1767 (IoW Co VA Deeds  1750-1782 pg 177)
1776 - Sanford Patterson,.  Appraised by Francis Young;  Jesse Barlow, Francis Brantley.   Ordered; March 7, 1776  R.  April 4, 1777
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1790 - Valentine Jenkins,.  Account estate, examined by------ Young, John Goodrich, William Casey.  Signed, Capt. William Davis.  Among items, paid Willis Brantley, his part of estate; paid Benjamin Barlow for keeping the orphan.  R.  October 4, 1790
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Land Study

by Trudy Moneyhand

Hi Ken,                                                                                                              4-27-09
 
As you know often the term “swamp, creek and river” were intertwined and often referred to the same body of water. This can be really confusing when there are actually two locations, one being a swamp and one being a creek. This is exactly the case with Seward Creek and Se(e)ward, Se(a)ward Swamp (a real culprit of confusion). This clarification was really a “light bulb” moment when I closely studied a 1640 map and another map dated 1670 and compared them.

STARTING WITH THE MAPS

1)   When I looked and considered the info drawn on an Isle of Wight map dated 1640, I noticed 2 main branches coming off of the east side of the Blackwater River around Rattlesnake Swamp (one below the other). The branches were un-named on that map, but it occurred to me that they were obviously important (landmarks) and thus put on the map for that reason (ie. first and second branch...). These appear to be the same branches referenced so often in early patents and land deals of that time. I began looking for other early maps with the same features and I finally found another dated 1670 (see the 1670 map on following page) and it had the same branches (plus one) with names. As I have poured over scores, if not hundreds, of land patents trying to find Edward’s location, I often came across Sewards Creek and also Sewards (Seawards) Swamp. At the time I thought they were the same, now I know they are two different places. That explains so much!!  


We know the large branch (Mill Swamp) comes off of the Blackwater then forks and goes north. The creek that is to the west of Mill Swamp at its fork is Moore's Swamp (early name). What REALLY made my eyes open is that on the same 1670 map there is branch just south called Seeward Swamp, aka. the “second branch”  

John Seward is the one that brought Edward over as an indentured servant. I knew Seward's 1500 acre original patent was located south of the Warrasqueak Bay (Burwell Bay) and north of the Pagan River. John Seward indeed had two land locations (as did many early settlers).  His original patent is northeast of Smithfield called Levy Neck (upon Pagan Creek, aka, Sewards Creek). It probably went along the creek on the northeast side and up to Old Stage Road area near Lawson. Seward’s second land purchase a few years later was at Blackwater (Seewards Swamp).   So we know early in the settlement, John Seward also had a creek, named for him which is referenced often in many very early patents. Seward Creek, (according to the IOW Tourism Bureau 1994 newspaper piece), was also known as Warroquoyake Creek by the Indians, New Town Haven Creek and later called Pagan Creek (as shown on the 1670 map). This is the large northern branch that comes off of the Pagan River (aka Pagan Bay). The Cypress Creek goes to the south. The Cypress Creek is not shown on the map below.





Now it makes sense when I read the land patents referencing Sewards Creek, and they are numerous. With the new found information, I can clearly see they point to this same area, the mouth of the Pagan Creek. In re-reading these patents with these locations in mind, it makes much more sense. These maps helped clarify the precise area we should be looking and what we suspected, there are two land patent locations.
LAND LOCATION REFERENCE 
The notes in blue are excerpts of land locations or notes that are an attempt to link or explain Edward’s patent or his neighbor’s location and relationships. Keep in mind the location of Seward’s Creek (now Pagan River) when reading the following.

Thomas Murry (Murrey), 300 acres, Apl,7, 1641, Upon branch of Seward Creek commonly known by the name Ashen Swamp, adj. Richard Jackson due for his transport of his wife....

-Notes and transcription by Blanche A. Chapman (IOW Hist. Soc) abt.1938 in the transcribed Wills and Administration of IOW, VA 1647- 1800 Books 1-3 as follows: 

       - Richard Jackson’s (he is mentioned often in surrounding land) patent of 12 March 1641 states...450 acres upon the head of a branch of the south bay called Sewards Creek...and another patent dated 28 Aug 1643 stating...110 acres near the head of Sewards Creek

      - Thomas Fenwick Patent, 1684, ... in the county of Lower Norfolk beg at the white oak ____and standing where the Ashen Swamp joins with the Cypress Swamp (Creek)
      - Harrison to Meacom, Book 8 page 282, ....corner tree at Ashen Swamp then running SW to branch below Phillip Brantley’s dwelling along a place called the Meadows.

   - Page 544 (Wills and Admin Book)  Peter Duberry’s will: wife Elizabeth Brantley, daughter, Priscilla was wife of Zacharias Maddera. (Maddera property was in the Upper Parish just above Levy Neck) John Brantley and Elizabeth executors of will.     

FYI in reference to above Maddera

Maddera patent is located “on the east side of Lawne’s Creek about one mile south of it’s juncture with the James River”. From Quakers to Cracker: a Madery Family History, by Robert F. Madrey, adds that “other property owners in the immediate vicinity were Thomas Tooke, Robert Flake, Capt. Francis England, Thomas Blake, Edmund Brantley, George Wombell and Col. Nathanial Bacon.”
– 25 Mar, 1725 -Will of James Sampson: Leg. son Barcroft: daughter Margaret, 100 acres adjoining Isaac Jarrett and Nicholas Derring: daughter Elizabeth 100 acres on which the widow Madera (see above) now lives, adjoining the land of Edward Brantley and Burrwell’s line: daughter Ann Derring, the plantation on which her husband Nicholas Derring now lives. Trustees Samuel Croft and John Floyd Wit: James Ingols (probably same James Ingles that bought Phillip’s Tract #3 in 1732 and still owned it in 1747), Charles Goodrich, Thomas Jones
This creek /swamp discovery and clarification has helped me zone in on of the proximity of Sewards “Creek” to the location of the elusive Ashen Swamp and helps us get much closer to the patent. This also gives us clear evidence that we have indeed been talking about two different area locations of Edward’s land, one in Levy Neck (near Pagan River)  area and one in the Blackwater – Mill Swamp area.

NEW LAND DEAL?

2) Secondly in this three part discovery. I have concentrated on the original 1669 patent assigned to Edward. I have, however, discovered a purchase recorded two years earlier in1667: so the question is, are the 1667 and 1669 land deals the same thing for 675 acres or was this two separate deals thus making Edward’s holding a 1350 acre parcel? 

***   8 Feb, 1667 - Frances Hobbs sells Edward Brantley 675 acres between land of Thomas Took, Frances England, Col. Nathaniel Bacon and orphans of Thomas Murrey. **** from transcription by Blanche A. Chapman (IOW Hist. Soc) done abt.1938 Wills and Administration of IOW, VA 1647- 1800 Books 1-3
This opened even more doors. Of course we always knew the 1669 patent said land between Took and England, but this was definitely the first I had seen Frances Hobbs, Murrey and Col. Bacon mentioned directly with Edward. 

I took this sale and this piece of land and followed it back through Francis Hobbs and was able to locate it just north where the Pagan River splits going to the north and Cypress Creek goes to the south. This piece of land descended from Nathaniel Floyd starting as early as 1637.  See below:


A) NATHANIEL FLOYD, 850 acres, 20 NOV 1637, 600 acres being a neck of land about 4 miles up the main creek which runneth up the baye of Warwicksquike and lying between two creeks, and 250 up near the head of the main creek for the transportation of 17 persons among whom was Ambrose Proctor and Matthew Tomblin.

B) JOHN SEAWARD, 400 acres 18 JUN 1638. Upon New Town Haven River (aka. Pagan Creek) against land of Nathaniel Floyd and near his former patent.

C) NICHOLAS COBB, 900 acres 17 JUN 1664, Upon a branch from Pagan Creek which branch runs through land of Mr. Nathaniel Floyd (aka Floyds Creek), adj. Mr. Nicholas Smith (Smith Neck). Granted to James Tuke 11 Nov 1640 and assigned by Wm. Tuke, his son and heir to said Cobb.  3 Jan 1661
D) JOSEPH BRIDGER, 1669, Frances Hobbs sells to Joseph Bridger for 4257 lbs tobacco a dwelling house and plantation he lives on of 250 acres former patent of Nathaniel Floyd.
E) JOSEPH BRIDGER, esq., 22 July 1678, sells to John Harris and Thomas Harris the tract of land formerly sold Thomas Harris, their father, by Capt. Frances Hobbs and his wife, formerly belonging to Nathaniel Floyd and to Bridger  - There was a Hobbs Landing formerly called Goldsmith Landing mentioned in a Joseph Bridger 1683 land sale.

F) We also know that the original Indian grounds early during the settlement of the area was just southeast of the Levy Neck area which gives us an approximate location of “the dancing place” recorded in Edward’s 1669 patent. 

FROM THE IOW VAULT

The previous information supports the information below, which is the third and final “additional” discovery from the IOW court tax book you and I reviewed during our visit to the research vault. You had previously found similar information dated 1815, but the recent find gave some additional location information in support.

Below is taken from one of the entries you made and forwarded to me. 

1815 Directory of Virginia Landowners  - Isle of Wight





     (Distance & Direction from Isle of Wight Ct House)

Elizabeth Brantley  
life, Smith's Neck

        15NE  

Frances Brantley (of Thomas dec'd) heirs, Long Neck     8 NE

Thomas Brantley Sr
  Peggan Creek

         9 NE

Note in the above first entry the term “life”. I believe it is an ownership term used similar to “fee simple” below. It is explained as follows;

        Many common law jurisdictions retain the possibility of creating a life estate, although this is uncommon. In the U.S., life estates are most commonly used in the context of either giving a right to someone in a will to use property for the remainder of that person's (or another person's) life, or reserving to a grantor who is selling property the right to continue using the property for the remainder of his/her life.
The term “fee simple” is used in the following information. Defined as - Highest form of legal estate in freehold land denoting complete ownership. 'fee simple' means ownership that will not end with the death of the present owner but will descend to his or her heirs. with no conditions placed upon it and that will endure as long as there are descendants to inherit it. With this in mind, see below.
(3)  Land Roll Book 1824, Pagan Creek 
Thomas Brantley, Fee Simple, 9 m NE of Courthouse, 11acres
Land Roll Book -1825 

Elizabeth Brantley, 162 acres

Elizabeth Brantley 70 acres Smith Neck
Frances Brantley, fee simple, 11 acres Levy Neck (could this be the same 11 acres above? They both say “fee simple”)
Elizabeth Brantley, distance being from courthouse 15 NE, (worth) $8.00 acre (total) $597, tax $.47 

Frances Brantley, being 8 NE from courthouse, worth $55

Land Roll Book -1828-District of William Holliman

Elizabeth Brantley, Fee Simple, 9 m NE of Courthouse, 11acres

Thomas Brantley, 9m (NE) 103 acres

ROAD TRIP


Interestingly enough, there has only been one main road from the Isle of Wight Courthouse to Smithfield (Rt 258) and then north up to the Levy Neck area (old Rt 10, Old Stage Road).  After discussions with a few IOC County Historical Society members, they are in agreement that the distance would be via these roads (which have not changed considerably in centuries).  So I took a road trip. I drove to the courthouse and clocked the mileage: first, for the 8 or 9 miles stated above and that took me a slight bit north of the juncture of Rt 258 and Old Rt 10 (Old Stage Rd), but still basically in the Smithfield downtown area (and a smidge north). This area is exactly where the land is located which according to the 675 acres sold by Hobbs to Edward.  Review-See Below

NATHANIEL FLOYD, 850 acres, 20 NOV 1637, 600 acres being a neck of land about 4 miles up the main creek which runneth up the baye of Warwicksquike and lying between two creeks, and 250 up near the head of the main creek for the transportation of 17 persons among whom was Ambrose Proctor and Matthew Tomblin.
     
Through internet contact of a few people in the area, I have found two different areas of Brantley's. One email contact, Ria Hendrix, confirmed she knew there was a large concentration of Brantleys up on the northside in the Levy Neck area in the 18th and 19th centuries and we know of the later Blackwater area. I also found a later patent that located our Brantleys in the Rattlesnake Swamp area which is the “tract of land between the first and second branch of the Blackwater”.

OTHER TIDBITS 

Thomas Murrey, 300 acres, APL 20 1641, beg near persimmon swamp, head of a branch of Seward’s Creek adj Capt Nathaniel Basse, John Newland, Samuel Jackson, Hugh Winn and John Seward’s crossing branches of Goose Hill Creek for transp. of 6 persons.

       - Jan 22 1699, Will of William Basse of Levy Neck, legacy John Harrison, son of John and M. Harrison, land bounding on John Murrey and John Carroll: to his brother William Harrison the rest of the land purchased of John Seward, deceased.

       - Oct 1, 1716 John Brantley and Clay Brantley , Thomas Holleman, all witnessed will of Thomas Carroll (Carroll was in that same area)
      - 10 Feb 1753, ...William Davis and wife, Katherine, of Newport Parish to William Harrison of the same...100 acres called “Round Hill” near Pagan Creek  (except 30 acres which sold to Nicholas Casey) which is the land said Davis bought from Sarah Murry which she had bought from George Murry... also -?- acres which said Davis bought from John Murry.

Col. Nathaniel Bacon, 1075 acres, 16 Feb 1663 upon a branch of Pagan Creek beg at south most part of Cross Creek where Anthony Jones land begins, over the creek NE by N and thence to where Wm Smith’s line begins and one mile end of John Sparks land renewal.

        -Col. Bacon’s land called Crockett’s Creek (Crocketts Landing) was at the head (split) of the Pagan and Cypress Creeks.

        -Jan 23 1690, ....Nathaniel Bacon land adj. Robert Williamson and James Atkinson (we know the exact location of the Atkinson plantation as per IOW Historical Society, thus the location of Bacon)
This following information came from a Harrison site. Much of this land, I feel, may be very close to the area of interest regarding Edward.

From “Isle of Wight, Virginia Deeds, 1750-1782: 
  

1 June 1751… Petition of Thomas Whitfield and wife, Mary Whitfield, and John Chapman and wife Jordan Chapman…petition to divide inherited land (whereas William Harrison, late of Isle of Wight, decd., died seized of 1,000 acres in Newport Parish which was willed to said Harrison by William Bressie on 9 June 1701.  Mary Whitfield and Jordan Chapman were said Harrison’s Coheirs.  Whitfield is to receive the upper part and Chapman is to receive the lower part of the land. 
Rec. 6 June 1751      Thomas Whitfield 
         Mary (X) Whitfield 
         John Chapman 
         Jordan (X) Chapman

  

10 February 1753…William Davis and wife, Katherine Davis, of Newport Parish to William Harrison of the same…100 acres called “Round Hill” near Pagan Creek (except 30 acres which was sold to Nicholas Casey) which is the land said Davis bought from Sarah Murry which she had bought from George Murry…also-?-acres which said Davis bought from John Murry. 
                   William Davis 
Wit: James Calcote, Thomas Whitfield, John Chapman and Edward Goodrich. 
Rec. 1 March 1753

  

3 October 1754…John Meacom and wife, Elizabeth Meacom, to John Hyndman…100 acres (being land willed by Edward Brantly, Sr. on 30 March 1688 to his daughter, Mary Brantley, and it descended to her son, John Deberry, as her Heir and he sold it to Thomas Royall on 4 May 1716 and his son, Thomas Royall, sold it to William Harrison on 22 January 1739 who then sold it to the said John Meacom on 2 November 1749) adjoining Ashen Swamp and Phillip Brantley. 
Rec: 3 October 1754 
        John (X) Meacom

  

2 January 1755…John Meacom to William Harrison…50 acres (being a patent dated 20 July 1753 and was in dispute with Edward Brantley, decd.). 
Rec: 2 January 1755 
         John (X) Meacom
16 June 1767…Henry Harrison of Isle of Wight to to Robert Fry of Elizabeth City County the Borough of Norfolk…50 acres (being land willed by William Harrison, decd., to the said Henry Harrison on 11 October 1762) adjoining Robert Fry, Widow Murry, Robert Burwell and Wilson and Wilson Brantley. 
Wit: Gabriel Gibbs, Thomas Seawell and Thomas (X) Barlow. Henry Harrison



So, Ken, I hope this has brightened your day. I certainly have been excited and wanted share this news. I think it is a good find and I am excited to be within a mile or two of his land. At least now I feel we are within striking distance and can hopefully zone in on the precise location.
Trudy

Harrison Study from Virginia File

The following contains all the entries in our Virginia file where the name Brantley and Harrison appear together.  We have drawn no particular conclusion here, but want to share this with our most serious researchers who may find important links.

This information is not for general distribution.  It is a copy righted abstract for your eyes only.

Jun 20 1716          PHILLIP BRANTLEY of ISLE of WIGHT Co to JOHN DAVIS FOR 4000 pounds of  tabacco     "tract of  land  and plantation situated lying and being in Isle of Wight County whereon the said Phillip Brantley dewleth 100 acres being part of a rant of 675 acres dated Oct 20, 1669 to Edward Brantley by the last will & testament and devised to said Phillip.  Witness:  Joseph Chapman, Wm Harrison
*********************************************************************************************

Jun 20 1716 - Phillip Brantley and wife Joyce Brantley Isle of Wight Co -to John Davis 100 acres (being part of a patent for 675 acres granted Edward Brantley on Oct 30 1669 who devised it to Phillip Brantley  on 30 1688

Wit:  Joseph Chapman & Wm Harrison           Rec Jun 25 1716

*********************************************************************************************

May 26 1735     Benjamin Brantley & wife Elizabeth of Isle of Wight Co to James Brantley  Both of lower parish of Virginia   for 10 pounds of Virginia Money  One half of 200 acres (not identified) Witness: William Harrison, Samuel Jones  

*********************************************************************************************

May 26 1745.. Benjamin Brantley and wife, Elizabeth Brantley, of the lower parish to James Brantley of the same... 100 acres in the lower parish (being 1/2 of 200 acres adjoining James Brantley).

Wit;  William Harrison, Samuel Jones and John Murry.  
REC: Nov 24 1735

*********************************************************************************************

May 26 1745.. Benjamin Brantley and wife, Elizabeth Brantley, of the lower parish to Edward Brantley of the same... 100 acres in the lower parish (being 1/2 of 200 acres binding on Burwell, Edward Brantley and James Brantley).  Wit;  William Harrison, Samuel Jones and John Murry.  
REC: Nov 24 1735

*********************************************************************************************

Feb 21 1744..  Temperance Harrison of Newport Parish to Joseph Jones of the same... 125 acres in Newport Parish (being all of the land that James Wheadon lived on and where Elizabeth Bamer now lives) adjoining Little Creek, Benjamin Brantley and Mrs Sarah Merry.  Wit:  Benjamin Hodges, William Harrison, and John Davis Jr.     REC:  Jun 25 1744.

Nov 2 1749...  William Harrison and wife, Mary Harrison, to John Meacom...  100 acres )being land willed by Edward Brantley on Mar 30 1688 to his daughter, Mary Brantley, and then it descended to John Deberry as Son and Heir of said Mary Brantley.  He sold the land to Thomas Royall on May 4 1716 and Thomas Royall, son of Heir of the said Thomas Royall, sold the land on Jan 22 1739 to the said William Harrison) on Ashen Swamp and adjoining Phillip Brantley.   REC:  Dec 7 1749.

*********************************************************************************************

Mar 8 1750 -  John Meacom vs Edward Brantley - squabble over land resolved - Edward had placed "chains on the land" -  Jury said that they had contracted a surveyor and they find this land to be part of the land left to Mary Brantley, by the will of her father, Edward Brantley dec'd, in Mar 1688; that she later married Peter DeBerry; after both Mary and Peter died, son John received the land; that he sold the land to Thomas Royal, who left it to his son Thomas Royal, who sold it to Wm Harrison who sold it to plaintiff Meacom.  Hard to read seems to have found in favor of Meacom.

*********************************************************************************************

1754 -Edward Brantley,.  Inventory presented by William Harrison.  R.  May 2,  1754
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*********************************************************************************************

Jan 8 1757 - John Hyman of Isle of Wight to Francis Russwurm of York Coo  100 acres (being land willed by Edward Brantley Sr, dec'd on 13 Mar 1688 to his daughter Mary Brantley, and it descended to John Deberry as son and heir of the said Mary Brantley and he sold it to Thomas Royall on May 4 1716 and it was then sold by Thomas Royal, son and heir o the said Thomas Royall, to William Harrison on 27 Jan 1739 who sold it to John Meacom on 2 Nov 1749 and he sold it to John Hyndman on 3 Oct 1754) adjoining Ashen Swamp and Phillip Brantley   Wit:  Samuel Whitworth, Edward Archer and George Purdie  Rec.  6 Oct 1757 (IoW Co VA Deeds 1750-1782 pg 515)

*********************************************************************************************

Oct 23 1758 - Francis Russwurm of Isle of Wight to Robert Fry of Nansemond Co.. 100 acres (v=being willed by Edward Brantley Sr on 30 Mar 1688 to his daughter, Mary Brantley , and it descended to her so and heir John Deberry who sold it to Thomas Royall on 4 May 1716 and it was then sold by Thomas Royall, son and heir of the aforesaid Thomas Royall, to William Harrison on 22 Jan 1739 who sold it on 2 Nov 1749 to John Meacom who sold it to John Hayndman on 3 Oct 1754) adjoining Ashen Swamp and Phillip Brantley.  Wit: James Shedden, Charles Fulgham and William Robertson  Rec 2 Nov 1758  (IoW Co VA Deeds  1750-1782 pg 39)
*********************************************************************************************

SEP 28 1758    VICENT BRANTLEY of ISLE OF WIGHT CO - Receives GRANT 94 ACRES ON THE SOUTH SIDE OF THE JAMES RIVER, ADJOINING THE LAND OF Wm HARRISON, BRANTLEY'S PATENT LAND, SAMUEL WILSON & THOMAS'S BARLOW'S LAND

*********************************************************************************************

1759 - Benjamin Brantley,.  Estate appraised by Benjamin Harrison, William Harrison, William Wrenn.  Ordered, January 5, 1759  R.  February 1, 1759
Page 192/465

*********************************************************************************************

Aug 1761 - Indenture & Receipt from Lewis Meacom & Nicholas Casey proved by Oath of Benjamin Harrison, Wm Harrison, and Thomas Brantley.

*********************************************************************************************

Jun 19 1761 - Lewis Meacom of Newport Parish to Nicholas Casey of the same .. 30 acres which formerly belonged to John Potter) on Pagan Creek.  Lewis Meacom bought the land from Joseph Woodson  Wit Benjamin Harrison, Wm Harrison, and Thomas Brantley  Rec: Aug 6 1761   (IoW Co VA Deeds  Bk 10 1758-1762 pg 301)
*********************************************************************************************

June 3, 1762  William Murry  est Appraised by John Seammell, Wilson Brantley, Benjamin Harrison.   Ordered, June 3, 1762   R.  July 1, 1762
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*********************************************************************************************

Jun 16 1767 ..Henry Harrison of Isle of Wight to Robert Fry of Elizabeth City Co the Borough of Norfolk.. 50 acres (being land willed by William Harrison, dec'd to the said Henry Harrison on 11 Oct 1762) adjoining Robert Try, Widow Murry, Robert Burwell and Wilson Brantley  Wit:  Gabriel Gibbs, Thomas Seawell and Thomas Barlow  Rec 2 1767 (IoW Co VA Deeds  1750-1782 pg 177)
*********************************************************************************************

October 21, 1769 Thomas Day will:   Leg.-wife Elizabeth; son James Bennett Day; daughter Mary daughter Juliana.

Exs., brother John Day and friend Richard Hardy.  D.  October 21, 1769        R. October 1, 1772

Wit.  Henry Harrison, George Thomas White, Thomas Brantley  Page 170

*********************************************************************************************

May 24, 1779 - Isle of Wight Co will - Frances Brantley,:  Leg.-wife Naney; daughter Sally; daughter Nancy Harrison.  Ex., Benjamin Glover.  D.  May 24, 1779         R.  July 1, 1779.   Wit. John Hodges, Edward Dews, Patience Hodges   I of W Co Wills and Adm's 1647 - 1800
*********************************************************************************************

Wilson Brantley Study from VA Files

Will Nov 11 1803 Isle Of Wight Co VA

He died Feb 1805

Wilson and wife Mary sold land to John Jordan in 1765 in Isle of Wight Co

Will of John Jordon, mentions daughter Mary Brantley

Since Wilson sold land as early as 1753 he must have been born around 1730

Suspect him to be a grandson of Phillip or John (sons of Edward)

Wilson named only one son in his will - James Brantley

His mother may have been a Wilson

Mar 1 1753 - John Wrenn to Francis Wrenn .. 100 acres adjoining Suters Branch, James Dering, (?) and Squerens Branch   Wit: Richard Jordon, Wilson Brantley, Benjamin Marley, and James Martin
- John Wrenn   Rec 1 Mar 1753  (IoW Co VA Deeds  1750-1782 pg 84)

1758  (initial part on preceding page - missed)  …adjoining Thomas Kemp and the former line of James Atkinson.. and another tract of 300 acres in the Upper Parish adjoining William Camp, said Croft, Joseph Holliman, John Holliman, Arthur Crocker, Samuel Taylor, Thomas Moor, Reubin Cook, and Soloman Stephenson  Wit: Benjamin Pynes, Wilson Brantley and Thomas Cole  Rec 7 Sep 1758  (IoW Co VA Deeds  1750-1782 pg abt 32) 

William Murry,.  Appraised by John Seammell, Wilson Brantley, Benjamin Harrison.   Ordered, June 3, 1762   R.  July 1, 1762
Page 19/215






1763 - John Murry,.  Appraised by James Derring, John Barlow, Wilson Brantley.  R. October 6, 1763









Page 251/311

Jan 5 1764 .. Joseph Maddra to John Jordan.. 34 acres adjoining Thomas Barlow, William White, and Wilson Brantley  Wit: James Jordan, George Hall and John Ward  Rec: 5 Jan 1764   (IoW Co VA Deeds Bk 11  1761-1765 pg 201)
1764 - Elizabeth Cutchins estate divided between brothers and sisters  Ex., brother Joseph Cutchins.   D.  January 18, 1764  R.  April 6, 1764 Wit.  Wilson Brantley, Lucy Miller, John Mallery
Page 327

Feb 7 1765 .. Wilson Brantley and wife, Mary Brantley, to John Jordan .. 65 acres adjoining the land John Jordan bought from Joseph Madera, Thomas Barlow, Samu Wilson Brantley Study from VA Files

Will Nov 11 1803 Isle Of Wight Co VA

He died Feb 1805

Wilson and wife Mary sold land to John Jordan in 1765 in Isle of Wight Co

Will of John Jordon, mentions daughter Mary Brantley

Since Wilson sold land as early as 1753 he must have been born around 1730

Suspect him to be a grandson of Phillip or John (sons of Edward)

Wilson named only one son in his will - James Brantley

His mother may have been a Wilson

Mar 1 1753 - John Wrenn to Francis Wrenn .. 100 acres adjoining Suters Branch, James Dering, (?) and Squerens Branch   Wit: Richard Jordon, Wilson Brantley, Benjamin Marley, and James Martin
- John Wrenn   Rec 1 Mar 1753  (IoW Co VA Deeds  1750-1782 pg 84)

1758  (initial part on preceding page - missed)  …adjoining Thomas Kemp and the former line of James Atkinson.. and another tract of 300 acres in the Upper Parish adjoining William Camp, said Croft, Joseph Holliman, John Holliman, Arthur Crocker, Samuel Taylor, Thomas Moor, Reubin Cook, and Soloman Stephenson  Wit: Benjamin Pynes, Wilson Brantley and Thomas Cole  Rec 7 Sep 1758  (IoW Co VA Deeds  1750-1782 pg abt 32) 

William Murry,.  Appraised by John Seammell, Wilson Brantley, Benjamin Harrison.   Ordered, June 3, 1762   R.  July 1, 1762
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1763 - John Murry,.  Appraised by James Derring, John Barlow, Wilson Brantley.  R. October 6, 1763









Page 251/311

Jan 5 1764 .. Joseph Maddra to John Jordan.. 34 acres adjoining Thomas Barlow, William White, and Wilson Brantley  Wit: James Jordan, George Hall and John Ward  Rec: 5 Jan 1764   (IoW Co VA Deeds Bk 11  1761-1765 pg 201)
1764 - Elizabeth Cutchins estate divided between brothers and sisters  Ex., brother Joseph Cutchins.   D.  January 18, 1764  R.  April 6, 1764 Wit.  Wilson Brantley, Lucy Miller, John Mallery
Page 327

Feb 7 1765 .. Wilson Brantley and wife, Mary Brantley, to John Jordan .. 65 acres adjoining the land John Jordan bought from Joseph Madera, Thomas Barlow, Samuel Wilson and William White  Rec 7 Feb 1765   (IoW Co VA Deeds Bk 11  1761-1765 pg 255)
Jun 16 1767 ..Henry Harrison of Isle of Wight to Robert Fry of Elizabeth City Co the Borough of Norfolk.. 50 acres (being land willed by William Harrison, dec'd to the said Henry Harrison on 11 Oct 1762) adjoining Robert Try, Widow Murry, Robert Burwell and Wilson Brantley  Wit:  Gabriel Gibbs, Thomas Seawell and Thomas Barlow  Rec 2 1767 (IoW Co VA Deeds  1750-1782 pg 177)
1777 - Mathew Gray - Appraised by Wilson Brantley; Gabriel Gibbs; Thomas Whitfield R. May 1, 1777








Page 465

1782 - William Howell, Appraised by Edward Dows,  Wilson Brantley, John Pitman. R.  March 7, 1782 

Page 99/112

1793 - James Brown,.  Appraised by Sampson Wilson, Wilson Brantley, Harwood Calcote, James Pyland

R.  February 4, 1793




Page 155/248

el Wilson and William White  Rec 7 Feb 1765   (IoW Co VA Deeds Bk 11  1761-1765 pg 255)
Jun 16 1767 ..Henry Harrison of Isle of Wight to Robert Fry of Elizabeth City Co the Borough of Norfolk.. 50 acres (being land willed by William Harrison, dec'd to the said Henry Harrison on 11 Oct 1762) adjoining Robert Try, Widow Murry, Robert Burwell and Wilson Brantley  Wit:  Gabriel Gibbs, Thomas Seawell and Thomas Barlow  Rec 2 1767 (IoW Co VA Deeds  1750-1782 pg 177)
1777 - Mathew Gray - Appraised by Wilson Brantley; Gabriel Gibbs; Thomas Whitfield R. May 1, 1777








Page 465

1782 - William Howell, Appraised by Edward Dows,  Wilson Brantley, John Pitman. R.  March 7, 1782 

Page 99/112

1793 - James Brown,.  Appraised by Sampson Wilson, Wilson Brantley, Harwood Calcote, James Pyland

R.  February 4, 1793




Page 155/248

Wren/Wrenn Study from Virginia Records File

J. Kenneth Brantley

Nov 28 1704 - Nathaniel Whitley and Thomas Wren indebted to Col Sam Bridger; signed Thomas Wren and Nath Whitley; witness Will Bridger and Phillip Brantley.  Same indebtedness for Benjamin Champion and George White.  Same for Nanthaniel Whitley and Thomas Wren    Page 62/508

------

Apr 28 1714 -  Arthur Jones to Samuel Gayner 100 acres upper parish (being an exchange by Francis England and Henry King on Sep 2 1665) and bounded by Phillip Brantley, Richard Jones, Francis England's patent, Maj William Bridger, and Francis Wrenn.  Wit:  Wm Bridger and Henry Lightfoot    REC Jun 28 1714

------

Mar 28 1733.. Samuel Gainer and wife, Ann Gainer, of Albemarle County in NC to John Miller of Isle of Wight County... 100 acres in the upper parish adjoining Richard Jones, Phillip Brantley, Francis England, Maj William Bridger and Francis Wrenn.  Wit:  John Hodges, James Everard, Richard Jordan, and Edward Miller     NOTE:  Ann Gainer appoints George Bell Sr of the upper parish as her attorney   Wit: John Nairne, Wm Bell and John Bell.   
REC:  Aug 27  1733

------

Oct 24 1747  John Deshey -  Will; Rec Jun 9 1748 - Legatees: Mother Mary, cousins; John Wrenn, Mary Brantley James Wrenn, Joseph Wrenn, William Wrenn, Elizabeth Brantley, and Joseph Webb; cousin Martha Bedgood's children cousin Francis Wrenn, in case he should not return legacy to be give to John Wrenn.  Exc'r Mother Mary Deshey; Wits: Thomas Smith, William Glover and Elizabeth Smith 


Book 5/114

------

Oct 20 1748 Mary Deshey... Will - to cousin James Wrenn the plantation which I now live on & negroes.  To James a negro fellow name Peter on the proviso that said James do pay to the 2 daughters of Ann Brancy, the wife of Francis Bracy the sum of 500 pds on their marriage day or age 18, further James is to pay John Wrenn, Joseph Wrenn, Wm Wrenn, Mary Brantly, Elizabeth Brantly & Martha Bedgoods children the sum of L20 currency to be eq divided between the said brothers and sisters.  My cousins James & Joseph Jordon two feather beds.  Cousin James Wrenn, the first foal that the mare brings.  Cousins James & Richard Jordon executors.  Wit Tho Smith, W, Glover, John Chestnut, 





 -Pg 162

Feb 1 1749...  Owen Jones to John Meacom... 100 acres on the east side of the first swamp on the Blackwater (being land willed by Edward Brantley, dec’d, to his grandson Edward Brantley the Younger, and the land descended from his son, John Brantley, as his Son and Heir, who sold it to Joseph Atkinson on Apr 9 1747, who then sold it to the said Owen Jones) adjoining James Tooke Scott, John Miller, John Wrenn, land formerly James Ingles and John Davis.     REC:  Feb 1 1749.

-----

Aug 17 1749...  Joseph Atkinson and wife Mary Atkinson, to Owen Jones... 100 acres on the east side of the first swamp of Blackwater (being land bought of John Brantley) adjoining James Tooke Scott, John Miller, John Wrenn, James Ingles, and John Davis.    REC:  Sep 7 1749.

-----

Oct 1751 - Consecutive entries-  On motions of Edward Brantley, then Mary Brantley, as evidence of Francis Wrenn at their suits of Thomas White an infant, by John Meacom, his guardian.  It was ordered that the said Wrenn do pay both 150 lbs of tobacco for 6 days court attendance.

-----

May 6, 1752 - John Wrenn to John Jordan.. 80 acres in Isle of Wight and Surry Counties (being land willed by George Crips on 31 Aug 1687 to his servant man, Henry Suter   Wit:  Richard Jordon, William Jordan, and John Brantley      -John Wrenn     Rec 6 Aug 1752 (IoW Co VA Deeds  1750-1782 pg 507)
-----

Mar 1 1753 - John Wrenn to Francis Wrenn .. 100 acres adjoining Suters Branch, James Dering, (?) and Squerens Branch   Wit: Richard Jordon, Wilson Brantley, Benjamin Marley, and James Martin
- John Wrenn   Rec 1 Mar 1753  (IoW Co VA Deeds  1750-1782 pg 84)

-----

Wren/Wrenn Study from Virginia Records File

pg 2

Mar 4 1756 -   Platt of the boundary of the lands of Richard Jones, John Meacom, and Samuel Jones. Signed Richard Baker, Surveyor, Seth Hunter, Nicholas Miller, James Derring, Samuel Willson, John Jordan, Francis Wrenn, Thomas Goodson, Thomas Coffer, Joseph Madera, Thomas Barlow, William Brantley and John Coffer.   Rec  1 Apr 1756 (IoW Co VA Deeds Bk 9 1752-1758 pg396)

-----

Benjamin Brantley,.  Estate appraised by Benjamin Harrison, William Harrison, William Wrenn.  Ordered, January 5, 1759  R.  February 1, 1759

      Page 192/465

----

Jan 3 1761 - .. Benjamin Davis to his daughter, Frances Davis.. the plantation that Wm Wrenn now lives on.  Wit: John Brantley and Sarah Bridger  Rec Jun 2 1761   (IoW Co VA Deeds  1750-1782 pg 282)
----

Oct 3 1765 ..Lease of Thomas Day to Benjamin Brantley.. (?) acres (being all of the land whereon said Brantley now lives except the part reserved by said Day adjoining William Glover, Thomas Day, John Wrenn and James Lupo.  Rec 3 Oct 1765  (IoW Co VA Deeds  Bk 12 1765-1772 pg 32)
-----

Benjamin Brantley,.  Account estate, examined by John Mallory and John Wrenn.  R.  July 6, 1780 

      Page 92/49

WILLS

                              Edward Brantly  1688
In  the  name  of  God   Amen;   the 30th Day of March in the year of our Lord God,  1688

I Edward Brantly Senior of the upper parish of the Isle of Wight county being sick and weak in

body  but  of  sound  and  perfect  memory  praise be  to  God   for  the  same  and  knowing the

uncertainty of this life  on  Earth  and  being  desirous to  see  things  in  order   do  make  this 

my last will and testament  in maner and form following;  that is to say  first  and principally,  I 

commend my soul to almighty God,  my Creator assuredly believing that I shall own full pardon &

free remission of all my sins and be saved by the precious death and merritt of my blessed Savior

and redemer Jesus Christ and my body to the earth from whence it was taken, to be buried in such 

decent and Christian maner, as to my Executrix here after named shall be thought meek and conve-

nient and as touching such Worldly estate as the Lord in mercy hath lent, make my Will and mean-

ing  is that the same shall be employed and bestowed, as hereafter by this my Will is expressed and 

first to revoke, denounce,  frustrate  and make void  all Wills  by me formerly made and

seale and appoint this my last will and testament.  

I  do give devise  and  bequeath  into  my son  Edward  and  his son  James  one hundred   sixty

and five acres of land where the said  Edward now liveth  to him and the heirs of the  same

bodies lawfully begotten that is to say the whole one hundred and sixty five acres of land unto

my son Edward until his  son  James doth attain the  age of  one and twenty years and then 

it is my will that the said James Brantly shall have one hundred acres of that land to him and

the heirs of his body lawfully begotten: but if it shall happen that he shall dye without heir

or heirs then it is my Will that the next surving child of my son Edward shall have it forever.

I do give devise and bequeath unto my son Phillip two hundred acres of land to be both enjoyed

by him until his son Edward shall attain unto the age of  one and twenty years:  one hundred

 acres I do give unto my said son Phillip and his heirs forever the other hundred acres I do give.

I do give unto the said,  Edward Brantly  and the heirs of his body lawfully begotten:  but

if it shall so happen that he shall dye without heir or heirs then it is my Will that the next

surving child of my son Phillip shall have the same forever. 

I do give and bequeath unto my son John Brantly and his son John two hundred acres of land

the  said  two  hundred  acres  to  be  enjoyed  by the  said  John  Brantly   until  his  son

John Brantly doth attain unto the age of one and twenty years and then it is my Will that

his said son John Brantly shall have one of the hundred acres of land to be and remain to 

him and the heirs of his body lawfully begotten for ever: but if it shall so happen that the 

said John Brantly Jun. doth leave no increase behind him then it is my will that the next sur-

viving child of my son John shall enjoy  the  same forever the  other  hundred acres of land 

I do give unto my said son John and the heirs of his body lawfully begotten-

I do give devise and bequeath unto my  daughter  Mary Brantly  one  hundred acres of land

 beginning at the  corner tree at the askin  Swampe  running  southwest to the branch below 

Phillip Brantly's  dewelling house and then north along a place called  the medew to  be  and 

emanation to her and the heirs of her body lawfully begotten  I do give and bequeath unto my 

said daughter a feather bed as it stands with curtains, valance, ruggs, blankets, pillows, pillow

boulstir & sheets. 

I do give and bequeath unto John the son of my son John one feather bed with all appur-

tenanties: and one black mare, two pewter dishes, two pewter plates and two porringers. 

I do give and bequeath unto Edward Brantly the son of my son Phillip one bay mare with 

her moriah, only it is my will and I do give the first mare foal that that mare shall bring 

unto James Brantly the son of Edward Brantley.  I do give and bequeath a yoke of steers unto 

my three sons to be used jointly amongst them during the time the said heirs shall live 

and equally to be shared when they shall be killed.

I give unto my a three sons:  Edward,  Phillip  and  John  my  Indian slave  Peter 

to serve them two years a piece successively one after the other and when the six years is expired 

I do give the said Indian slave Peter unto my daughter Mary during her natural life and 

after her deceased to her children if she shall leave any behind her but if she dye without increase 

then to return to my sons or their children to be equally divided amongst them: I do give 

unto my son's eldest sons: a two year old heifer apiece.  

I do give and bequeath the remainder of my personall estate after my debts and funeral expenses 

payd unto my daughter  Mary Brantly  whom  I do make the  sole executrix of  this my  last 

will and testament in witness whereof I do here unto put my hand and seal. 

Signed Sealed 

published and declared to be the                                                                  Edward              Seale

last Will and Testament of Edward Brantly

                         X

Sen in the sight and presence of  
            


   Brantly                                                                                               

    John Whitstone       Proved in open court for the Isle of Wight County

    Ann A White      Jan 9th 1688/89 by the oath of John Whitstone Anne White

       her mark          & William Evans to be the will of Edward Brantly

    Witt Evans                                                                                     Test John Pitt









                  Reconstructed from the original by The Brantley Association of America                                               


                         Edward Brantly 

                                 Edward, son of Edward I.
                       Isle of Wight County  Virginia  -  1720
     In  the  name  of  God  Amen  Edward Brantly  aged  Seventy

Two Makes  This his  Last will  first I give  my sole to almighty God

Giver of all good Things first of all-I desire my body in decent manner

To buried  I give unto my Loving Wife Seventy Acres of Land which now

I live on & after her decease to my son Edward all of rest of my Estate

so Long as she shall Live to her disposing onley Keeping my Grand Chile

John Balmor   I Leave my  wife &  Dale Evans Executor of this my

Last will  in the year of our Lord  One Thousand & Twenty










   Edward  X  Brantly

                                         

     


         marke

John Brantly   

James X Madree

    his marke

                           


At  a  Court held for Isle of Wight

                     


 County  the 24th Day of  July  1721

  The Last will & Testament  of Edward Brantly was presented

in Court by his Executor who made oath thereto being proved in Court by 

Oaths of Witnesses  is admitted To Record 

                                        

  

 Jos H Lightfoot  Clk Ct   
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            The Brantley Association of America

                             
   John Brantley
 I N   T H E   N A M E   O F   G O D   A M E N ;  the  first 

of February 1730/31 according to the computation  of  the  Church  of

England,  I  JOHN  BRANTLY  of  the  Isle of  Wight County  in 

Virginia,  planter,  being of perfect  Memory and  Remembrance

praise be to God, do make and Ordain this my last Will & Testament 

in manner and form  following.  FIRST  I  bequeath  my  Soul

unto the  hands of  Almighty God,  my Maker  hoping that  through

the Meritorious  passion of all my sins and for my Body to be Buried

in Xtian Burial at the discretion of my Executor, hereafter mentioned

I T E M   I  give  to  my  Grand-Daughters,  Elizabeth and  Mary

and  Martha Loopers, three heifers of  two years old,  and  three 

pewter dishes  and  three plates,  and  twelve spoons,  and  two

iron  potts.  Item  I  give to  my  Grandson,  John Brantley

the  son of  my son,  Clay Brantley, one  Negro Boy,  Jimmy  when

the said  John shall attain to the age of  one and  twenty years

old. I T E M  I give to my Grandson,  Thomas Brantley, the son

of  my  son   Clay  Brantley,  one  Negro  Boy  Abraham   when

said Thomas shall attain to the age of one and Twenty Years Old

and if either of the above mentioned Negros left to my two Grandsons

John and  Thomas Brantley  should die  before they  should  come 

to the age of  One and Twenty Years, my desire is that the Negros

return  to  the  Survivor.  I T E M  I give to  my  son  Clay

Brantley  my  two  Negros (viz)  Harry  and  Sarah,  and  in case

he, the  said  Clay Brantley  should  dye,  and  his  wife  shall

marry,  then my Desire is that the two Negroes  Harry and  Sarah and

all their increase if any, shall return to my two Grandsons John and

Thomas Brantley.  I T E M  I give to my son Clay Brantley all the

tract  of  Land  that  I  now  dwell on  and  after  my just  Debts

and  Funeral  Charges  being  paid,  I  give  all  the  Residue of

my  Estate  both within  and  without Doors, to  my  loving  sons

Clay Brantley   which  I do  appoint him,  the said  Clay Brantley

the  whole and  sole  Executor of this  my  last  Will &  Testament

IN  WITNESS   I  have  here  set  my  Hand and Seal  this  first

Day of February  1730/31.

  Memorandum  and my Desire is  that my  Executor do  lett

my  loving  friend  Thomas Walton  have a  Gold Ring  to  the

Value of  Ten Shillings, to keep for my sake which I do leave

him for a legacy and  my  desire is that the said  Thos Walton

if he please to assist my Executor if he has occasion concerning

any thing of my Estate.

SEALED  and  DELIVERED                   John Brantley  seal
  in the presence of us

Thomas Walton: Elizabeth Walton

                                     At court for Isle of Wight County

                                       the 22 Day of March 1730/31

    The  last  will and  testament  of  John Brantley  Deceased

 was opened in court by the Executor therein named and being proved

 by the Oaths of  Thomas Walton Gent.  and his wife, the witness

thereto, it is admitted to Record

                                   Test James Ingle   Clk Ct.
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                Do Not Duplicate


In  the Name of God Amen,  The Last Will and Testament


of Clay Brantley  Viz 
Item  I Give and bequeath unto my Son John Brantley twenty Shillings

      
Current Money ----

Item  I Give and bequeath to my Grand Daughter, Elizabeth Brantley

      
the Daughter of Thomas Brantley one Feather Bed and Furniture

      
and one Negro Wench  Jenia -----

Item  I Give and bequeath to  my  grandson  James Brantley  the

      
Son of Thomas Brantley one feather bed and furniture & two cows

Item  I Give and bequeath to my  grandson  Thomas Brantley  son 

      
of Thomas Brantley  three dishes &  six plates  and two cows 

Item  I Give and bequeath unto my  Daughter in Law  Lucy Brantley

      
one Negro Wench Sarah ----------

Item  I Give and bequeath to John Brantley, and  Benjamin Brantley

      
and  Thomas Brantley  Sons  of  Benjamin Brantley  five ----

      
shillings to each ----------

Item  I Give and bequeath  to my  Son  Thomas Brantley  One Negro

      
fellow  Harry  twelve  Sheep and all the  Stock of Cattle and

      
hogs  after my  Debts and  Legacys  are paid  and  all  the ---

      
Remainder of  my Estate  be it of  what Sort or Quality soever --

      
to him and his heirs forever  and  I do appoint my son Thomas

      
Brantley  my hole and  sole Executor of this my  Last Will

      
and  Testament, And  I do  Desire  that my  Estate may  not ---

      
be appraised.  In Witnesses Whereof I have hereto set my hand --

      
and Seal  this  twenty fifth  Day of  March  Anno Domini 1753

Signed Sealed and Acknowledge to be his                    his

         Last Will and testament in presents of      Clay  X Brantley {Sl}
                                                      

                    mark

        Roger Delk   }

        Jacob Bruce }

       At  Court held for Isle of Wight County June 5, 1755

       The  Last Will and Testament of  Clay Brantley Deceas'd was

       presented into Court by Thomas Brantley the Executor therein

       Named who made oath thereto, and being proved by the  Oath 

       of Roger Delk & Jacob Bruce the Witnesses thereto is Ordered

       to be Recorded                                             








  Test  Rich Baker  Clk Ct

    Reconstructed  from the original by

   The Brantley Association of America

                                         Edward Brantley – 1736
                                               Edward son of Phillip

I Edward Brantley of Nottoway parish in the County of Isle of Wight, being

very  sick and weak,  but of sound mind and  Memory, all laud and praise

be to God therefore do make and Ordain this my last Will and testament

in Manner following  (Viz)  First and principally,  I commit  my  Soul

to  Almighty God  trusting  &  firmly believing  through  the  Merritts of

Jesus Christ  my  Savior to  have  everlasting  salvation  and  for  what

worldly Estate hath pleased the  Lord to bestow upon me after  my  just

debts and  funeral charges is  defrayed  I give  bequeath and dispose

thereof as followeth.

Item- I give and bequeath to my loving wife Elizabeth for and during her

widowhood two thirds of my mannor plantation divided or tract of land

whereon I now live, containing two hundred and twenty five acres.  Im-

mediately  after her marriage or  death,  I  bequeath  the said  land to my 

son James Brantley and to him and his heirs for ever

Item- I give and bequeath to my loving wife Elizabeth the feather bed and

furniture which she usually lieth on  I also give unto my loving wife 

her riding horse with her saddle and briddle   I also give unto my loving

wife four pewter dishes & four pewter plates and dour cows and calves.

I also give unto my loving wife the trunk she calls her's.

Item- I give and bequeath to my son James Brantley  one tract of land 

containing  one hundred and forty acres  being  and  lying on the east 

side of the Flat Swamp to him and his heirs for ever.

Item- I give and bequeath to my loving son Lewis Brantley the tract of land I

bought of Mc Cinny lying on the  Flat Swamp, containing two hundred

acres to him and his heirs for ever   I also give the cattle and hogs be-

longing to the said plantation to my son Lewis Brantley.

Item- I give and bequeath to my son Joseph Brantley the plantation where-

on I now liveth, with all the land  belonging to the  same  bounded and

being on the North side of six pound creek to him and his heirs for ever.  I 

also give to my son, Joseph Brantley,  all cattle  on the said ,plantation

except two largest steers.  Item- I give and bequeath to my son John Bran-

tley four cows and calves.  Item- My desire is that my Negros still may be

sat up and sold at  public sale  to the  highest bidder  for cash  then  all

my debt to be paid out of the money and the remainder after to be divided

between my son Lewis Brantley and my son James Brantley.

Item- I give and bequeath to my two sons  the rest of my personal Estate 

after my funeral expenses and legacys  are paid of what  nature or kind

or property or quality whatever it be, to be  equally divided between my

two sons  Lewis and  James Brantley.   I hereby  constitute &  appoint

my two son  Lewis and  James Brantley my  executors of  this  my  last 

will & testament in  testimony of which  I also hereunto set my hand  &

seal this twenty sixth of Jun  Anno: Domini: 1736

Signed & sealed in presence of                    Edward   x    Brantley  (Seal)

  L.W. Bass  Wm Spence, Charles Bass                   mark
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Francis     I N   T H E   N A M E   O F   G O D   A M E N

Brantleys

Will      I Francis Brantley  of the  Isle of Wight Couny  and

          state of Virginia being Very sick, but in perfect Mind and

          Memory, thanks be to God for it  Item I leave to my wife

          Nancy  One Negro Women Named  Bet and  One Girl named 

          Morning  and their  Increase for  Life to Support her 

          and the Children on, and my Desire is that at her death

          the above Negros and their Increase be equally Divided

          between my two Daughters Sally and Nancy Harrison

          My Desire is that after all my Debts is payed

          that my beloved wife & aforesaid Children Enjoy all the

          rest of my Estate During her Natural Life and at

          her Death the said Estate to be Equally Devided between

          my  two  children  Sally  and  Nancy  Harrison

          My Will and Desire is that Benjamin Glover by my

          Executor of this my last will and testament this 24th

          Day of May 1779  Witness my hand & Seal

         Tested by                                      his  

         John Hodges                    Francis  X  Brantley   Seal

         Edward Dew                              mark 

         Patience Hodges                    
                                    At Court held for Isle of Wight County the

    8th Day of July 1779, This Will was presented in Court by Benjamin

    Glover the Executor therein named who made Oath thereto according to  

    Law & the Same being Proved by the Oaths of John Hodges, Edward

    Dew & Patience Hodges the Witnesses thereto and Ordered to be

    Recorded, and on the motion of the said Excutor who together with

    Emanuel Hunter, his security offered into and acknowledged their Bond

    in the Penalty of two Thousand Pounds with condition as the law Directs

    certificate is granted him for obtaining a Probate thereof in Due form

                                                       
  Test

                                                             
Francis Young
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Wilson Brantley




   Isle of Wight County - Virginia

In the name of God Amen,  I Wilson Brantley of the County of Isle of Wight

being of sound mind and disposing memory, do make and ordain this to

be my last will and testament in manner and form following:

Imprimis, I give and bequeath to my daughter Mary Glover, my negro

Capile and Lettice and her increase that is her personal children now

in possession of the said Mary Glover, namely Mill, Peter, Nan, Jacob,

Lucy, and one Negro Tom, also all the household  furniture  of  which

I have possessed her, to her and her heirs forever, and one falling Table

(Square) one feather bed furniture and one bofat also my negro fellow

called  Octes  and  negro  woman  called  Sarah, to her  &  her  heirs

Item I give and  bequeath to my daughter,  Sarah Moody,  one negro

boy Prince, one girl Couery, one fellow Joe, and a girl named Edy, also

the household furniture of which I have possessed her, and one bed of furniture and one walnut desk, one large looking Glass, one folling table (round)six walnut chairs, to she and her heirs- Item I give and bequeath to my daughter Winney Wilson, two negro boys named  Harry  and

Dick, together with the household furniture of which I have possessed 

her to she and her heirs --   Item  I  give and bequeath  to  Eliza

Brantley,  daughter of  James Brantley dec.,  one negro Dennis,

to she and her heirs --  Item  I give and  bequeath  Sarah Brantley,

daughter of the said James Brantley dec, one negro fellow silver to she

and her heirs--but in case either of them  Eliza or  Sarah Brantley

should die without issue lawfully begotten of their body that then

the survivor should possess the said two negros, Dennis and Silver

and in case both the said children Eliza Brantley and Sarah Brantley

should die without such issue the said  negroes  shall return to me

and my heirs--  Item  I give and bequeath  to  Robert Glover, the

land and plantation whereon  I now live to him and his heirs forever

upon these promises that he pay to  Sarah Moody  the  sum  of

ninety pounds, to Winney Wilson, ninety pounds and to the above

mentioned Eliza Brantley, forty five pounds, and to the above said

Sarah Brantley, forty five pounds.. and I also give to Robert Glover

my still that is on the said  plantation,  to  him and  his heirs forever--

and it is my will and desire that he shall not be called on to pay the above sum until the credit expires on the sale of my estate, which I shall hereafter direct--  

Item I give and bequeath to Wilson Moody, son of Ishmael Moody

sixty pounds cash, to him and his heirs-- Item It is my will and desire

that the remainder of my estate not yet given away be sole on a credit of twelve months and the money arising thereon to be divided equally

between my three children to wit; Mary Glover, Sarah Moody, and

Winney Wilson, only giving one equal fourth part of the money arising

from such sale,  to the aforesaid  Orphans of  James Brantley, dec.,

to be equally divided between them, to them and their heirs-- Lastly, I

do nominate constitute and appoint Robert Glover, and Ishmael Moody

executors of this my last will & testament, In witness whereof 

I have hereunto set my hand and affixed my seal, this 21st day of November

in the year of our Lord 1803----

Signed Sealed & Delivered









Wilson Brantley
In presence of

J. P. Barlow Sr.

Thomas Goodson-       At Court held for Isle of Wight County, this 3rd day of April 1805

Joseph Goodson
    this will was presented into court by Robert Glover, & Ishmael
Wm Ward
               Moody,  the executors therein named,  who made oath thereto



according to law, and the same being proved by the oath of Thomas Goodson


         and Joseph Goodson, two of the witnesses thereto & ordered to be recorded- on the


        motion of the said executors, who together with Andrew Woodley, their security


         entered into and acknowledge their bond in the penalty of twenty thousand


          dollars, with condition as the law directs- Certificate is granted them for obtan-


         ing a probate thereof in due form.









Test  Nathan Young
Reconstructed from the original by

The Brantley Association of America

Note: This file is a collection of some 50 years of  research on the Brantley family.  The entries were taken in some cases from the original record, but most are from the transcriptions of others found in books.  Often the trancriptions are, by our own entry, of several layers of trancripitions.  There has been little editing done on the records and our transcriptions usually followed the previous version of spellings.   Many errors in spelling are seen in the collection. While the collection is valuable to researchers, if one finds an entry that is contrary to his/her own research, the original document should be reviewed.


The reader will find many records that have no source info.  The were lost in many cases.   











Map of 1670, Isle of Wight Virginia   Note: 1st Branch, Mill Swamp   2nd Branch Seeward Swamp
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Seward’s Patent @ Levy Neck and home





Second patents located near Blackwater (will to Seward’s son)





Note; This transcription of Edward’s will was made from a poor zerox copy.  Recent transcriptions have shown a few word errors we made.








